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Letter of Transmittal

To

All the Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited

Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms

Subject: Annual Report for the year ended 30™ June 2015.

Dear Sir (s),
We are pleased to enclose herewith a copy of the Annual Report together with the Audited

Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30™ June, 2015 of Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.
along with reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon for your reference and record.

Yours Sincerely,

Sd/-
Md. Shawkat Ali
Company Secretary & CFO

Date: 26th November 2015
Dhaka.

N.B: The Annual Report 2015 is also available in the website of the Company at www.alhajtextilemills.com
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Board of Directors

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman - Md. Abdullah Bokhari
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Director - Md. Shahrawardi
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Independent Director - Md. Abdus Sobhan Bhuiyan,
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Secretary), Govt. of Bangladesh
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Convenor/Chairman - M. Farhad Hussain, FCA Convenor/Chairman - Md. Saidul Islam
Member - Md. Harunoor Rashid Member - Md. Talha
Member - Md. Bakhtiar Rahman Member - Md. Mizanur Rahman
Member - Md. Shamsul Huda Member - Md. Shahrawardi

Member - M. Farhad Hussain, FCA

CORPORATE EXECUTIVES AUDITOR

Company Secretary& CFO - Md. Shawkat Ali HAQUE SHAH ALAM MANSUR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

DGM (Admn.& Acctt.) - AKM Azharul Islam 27 Bijoynagar, Shaj Bhaban (6th Floor), Dhaka-1000
DGM (Com.) ~ Md. Abdur Rashid
AGM (Prod. & Mechanical) - Md. Akhtaruzzaman 1. Agrani Bank Limited

Internal Audit Officer - Md. Mohiuddin Patwary Ishurdi Branch, Ishrudi-Pabna.

2. Prime Bank Limited
[.B.B. Branch. Dilkusha. Dhaka

LAW ADVISER TAX ADVISER

Subhash Dutta, 17, Larmini Street, Wari,
Barrister & Advocates Dhaka-1203

42/1 Gha, 2™ Floor, Suite ‘A’, Tanaka INSURERS

Tower, Segun Bagicha, Dhaka-1000. Bangladesh General Insurance Co Ltd.
42,Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka.

Dr. Rafiqur Rahman & Associates

REGISTERED OFFICE
66, Dilkusha C/A (4™ Floor), Dhaka-1000.

FACTORY
LK Road, Ishurdi, Pabna
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Md. Abdullah Bokhari Md. Talha
Chairman Managing Director & CEO

Md. Shahrawardi Md. Harunoor Rashid Md. Maizanur Rahman Md. Saidul Islam
Director Director Director Director

11114

Md. Bakhtiar Rahman Md. Shamsul Huda M. Farhad Hussain, FCA Md. Abdus Sobhan Bhuiyan
Director Director Independent Director Independent Director
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SENIOR EXECUTIVE

Md. Shawkat Ali
Company Secretary & CFO

AKM Azharul Islam Md. Abdur Rashid Md. Akhtaruzzaman
Deputy General Manager (Admin)  Deputy General Manager (Com.) Asstt. General Manager
(Prod, & Mechanical)
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Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.

66, Dilkusha C/A (4™ Floor),
Dhaka-1000.

Notice of the 33" Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 33" Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Alhaj
Textile Mills Ltd. will be held on Monday, 21* December’2015 at 10.00 AM at Army Golf Club,
Dhaka Cantonment, Airport Road, Dhaka to transact the following business:

AGENDA

1. To Receive, Consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the year ended 30™ June, 2015 together with the report of the Auditors and
Directors thereon.

2. To declare Dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors for the
financial year 2014-2015.

3. To elect Directors in place of those who are to retire by rotation.
4. To appoint Auditors for the year 2015-2016 and to fix their remuneration.
5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

The shareholders of the Company are requested to attend the meeting accordingly.

By order of the Board
Dated: Dhaka M
28" October, 2015 Company Secretary & CFO

Notes:

1. The record date of the 33" Annual General Meeting has been fixed on 17" November, 2015.
Shareholders whose names will appear in the Shareholders Register of the Company or
Depository Register of CDBL on the record date will be eligible to attend and vote in the
AGM and to receive dividend as approved in the AGM.

2. Any shareholder of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting
may appoint any person, as his/her proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf, A shareholder,
being a corporation or Company, may appoint its representative, duly appointed and
authorized to attend and vote on its behalf. The proxy form or Power of Attorney as the Case
may be, duly signed and stamped of Tk. 20.00 (Taka Twenty) must be submitted at the
registered office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

3. Change of address (if any) should be communicated to the registered office of the Company.

For Information: As per BSEC notification dated 24™ October 2000 and 24™ October 2013, no
travelling allowance/any kind of gift will be provided to shareholders.

Note: The Annual Report is available in the Company’s website at www.alhajtextilemills.com
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Y | Soundness of Internal Control System
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Annexure-I

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors Comprises of 10 (Ten) members including 2 (Two) Independent
Directors. All Directors have sound knowledge in the area of Textile Sector and sound academic
qualifications. The Board is collectively responsible to the Company’s Shareholders for the
success of the company and for its overall strategic direction.

Here the Board of Directors holds periodic meetings to ensure the smooth managerial practice in
the company. They are well conversant with corporate governance.

Appointment of Board Members:

Directors of the Board are appointed by the Board of Directors with subsequent approval by the
Shareholders in the General Meeting. The Board of Directors is reconstituted every year by the
Shareholders through retirement or re-election of one third of its members.

Appointment of Independent Director:

The Board of Directors in its 399 and 403 Meeting held on 20-2-2014 & 18-6-2014 respectively
appointed 2 (Two) Independent Directors, one is M. Farhad Hossain, FCA, in place of Prof.
Mamtaz Uddin Ahmed and Md. Abdus Sobhan Bhuiyan, Former Joint Chief (Joint Secretary)
both of them are well experience and strong inter personal skills. Independent Directors are
considered by the Board to be Independent of the Company and free of any business or other
relationship that could interfere with the exercise of his Independent Judgment.

The Role of the Chairman and Managing Director:

The Position of the Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (CEO) had been separated.
The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and its effectiveness. The Managing Director
serves as the Chief Executive of the Company.

Board Commitments:

The Board is highly committed to its elements of Corporate Governance in achieving the
company objectives for the interest of the Shareholders. Therefore the Board through its Audit
Committee as well as the management of the Company discusses and revisers the status of
governance and take necessary/measures for continuous improvement in Corporate Governance
process.

The Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee as a sub Committee of the Board, have been constituted with the
Independent Director as Chairman and three other Directors. The Company Secretary acts as
secretary to the Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in ensuring that
the financial statement, reflect true and fair kind of the state of affairs of the Company.
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Company Secretary:

Company Secretary Md.Shawkat Ali provides legal matters to the Board.

Acts as a agent in all information towards the Shareholders and Board.

Is responsible for the appropriate Board procedures are followed.

Monitors the Compliance of the Acts, rules, regulations, notifications, guidelines, orders etc
issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission & Stock Exchange.
Company Secretary keeps the records of the company’s compliance/non-compliance status
of the conditions imposed by the SEC.

YVVYVY

Y

Chief Financial Officer:

Chief Financial Officer Md.Shawkat Ali Company Secretary & CFO looks after the overall
financial affairs of the company.

»  Prepared Quarterly, Half yearly and yearly financial statements.

»  Financial reporting procedures in line with the requirement of Bangladesh Accounting
Standards.

»  Report financial position of the Company in its Board meeting.

Financial Reporting and Transparency:

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with requirements of the companies
Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, Listing rules of Dhaka Stock Exchange
Limited.

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with requirements of BAS’s adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and applicable in Bangladesh.

Purchase and Sales Committee:

A Purchase and Sales Committee have been constituted with the Independent Directors along
with 4 (Four) other Directors. Md. Saidul Islam, Director is the Chairman of the Committee.
Main responsibilities of the Committee are -

Examine the Purchase proposal of goods.

To evaluate the received proposal and find out the effectiveness of each proposal.
To Supervise the entire activities against procurement and sales.

To monitor in increasing sales volume and production.

YVVYYVY
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The Directors also report that:

(xi)  The financial statements of the Company present true and fair view of Company’s state of
affairs, result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

(xii)  Proper books of accounts as required by the prevailing law have been maintained.

(xiii)) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the
financial statements and that the accounting estimates were based on reasonable and
prudent judgement.

(xiv) The financial statement was prepared in accordance with IAS/BAS/IFRS/BFRS.

(xv) The internal control system is sound in design and is effectively implemented and
monitored.

(xvi) There is no significant doubt upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
(xvil) There is no significant deviation from the operating result of the last year.

(xviii) The key operating and financial data for the last 05 (five) years is Annexed.

(xix) The Issuer company has declared stock dividend for the reporting year.

o Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Securities and Exchange
Commission is enclosed as Annexure-VII.

(xx) The number of board meeting and the attendance of Directors during the year 2014-2015
were as follows:

1\?(1). Name of Directors Position MIeretll(;lg Attended
1 | Md. Abdullah Bokhari Chairman 6 5
2 | Md. Talha Managing Director 6 5
3 | Md. Shahrawardi Director 6 6
4 | Md. Harunoor Rashid Director 6 3
5 | Md. Mizanur Rahman Director 6 6
6 | Md. Saidul Islam Director 6 6
7 | Md. Bakhtiar Rahman Director 6 4
8 | Md. Shamsul Huda Director 6 6
9 | M. Farhad Hussain, FCA Independent Director 6 6
10 | Md. Abdus Sobhan Bhuiyan, | Independent Director 6 6

Former Joint Chief ( Joint Secretary)

The number of Audit Committee Meeting and the attendance of Directors during the year
2014-2015 were as follows:

1\?(1. Name of Directors Designation Position M:Ieetlglg Attended
1 | M. Farhad Hussain, FCA Independent Director Chairman 8 8
(From 20-2-14)
2 | Md. Harunoor Rashid Director Member 8 5
3 | Md. Bakhtiar Rahman Director Member 8 7
4 | Md. Shamsul Huda Director Member 8 8
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The number of Purchase Committee Meeting and the attendance of Directors during the year

2014-2015 were as follows:

1\?(1). Name of Directors Designation Position M:Iztlglg Attended
1 | Md. Talha Managing Director | Member 12 9
2 | Md. Shahrawardi Director Member 12 12
3 | Md. Mizanur Rahman Director Member 12 12
4 | Md. Saidul Islam Director Convener 12 12
5 | M. Farhad Hussain, FCA Independent Director | Member 12 11
(xxi) The pattern of shareholding as required by clause 1.5 (xxi) of the SEC Notification No.

SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/34/Admin/44 dated 07 August, 2012.
(xxi) The Pattern of Shareholding:

a) Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related parties. - Not Applicable
b) Directors, CEQ, CS, CFQO, Head of Internal Auditor shareholding :
i) Directors:
o 0
S1 Share /o of Share /o of
Name Share Name of the Spouse Share
No hold . hold .
holding holding
1 Md. Abdullah Bokhari 5,76,222 | 3.783 | Mrs. Atiya Bokhari 1,93,540 | 1.271
2 Md. Talha 3,05,056 2.003 Khwaja Sakina Banu 7,00,438 | 4.599
3 Md. Shahrawardi 3,05,229 2.004 | Mrs. Khodija Khatun 2 -
4 Md. Harunoor Rashid 9,89,920 6.500 Mrs. Shahnaz Rashid - -
5 Md. Mizanur Rahman 8,889,271 5.839 Mrs. Afrina Rahman - -
6 | Md. Saidul Islam 5,24,605 | 3.445 | Mrs. Rabeya Akhter Daizy| 1,29,009 | 0.847
7 Md. Bakhtiar Rahman 4,95,732 3.255 Mrs. Shirina Rahman 11,761 | 0.077
8 | Md. Shamsul Huda 7,17,185 | 4.709 Mrs. Kaniz Fathima Chow. 5,047 | 0.033
Independent Director:
9 | M. Farhad Hussain, FCA - - - - -
10 | Md. Abdus Sobhan Bhuiyan - - - - -
Former Joint Chief
Total = 48,03,220 | 31.538% 10,39,797 | 6.824
ii) CEQ. CS. CFQO. Head of Internal Audit:
Share | % of Share Share | % of Share
Name hold | holding | NameoftheSpouse |y i |} lding
Md. Shawkat Ali .
276 0.002 Mrs. Mujtaba Khat 30 -
Company Secretary & CFO 5. Mtjtaba haatun
iii) Executive: Top 5 Salaried Employees, other than Director, CEO, CS, CFO & Head of
Internal Audit.
Sl Nam Desienation Share hold | % of Share
No ame esighatio holding
1. AKM Azharul Islam DGM (Admin) 68 -
2. Md. Abdur Rashid DGM (Com) 20 -
3. Md. Akhtaruzzaman AGM (Tech) - -
4, Md. Abul Hossain Manager (Com.) - -
5. Md. Atiqur Rahman Sr. Accounts Officer - -
6. Md. Mohiuddin Patwary Audit Officer - -
iv) Shareholding 10% or more rating Interest: - Not Applicable
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Annexure-I1

Audit Committee Report
For the year 2014-2015

In accordance to the best practices of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors of Alhaj Textile Mills
Ltd. formed an Audit Committee on 20-2-2014 & 18-6-2014 in its 399" & 403™ Board Meeting as per
Circulation of SEC Vide no. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/Admin/02-06 dated 9-1-2006 and status of
Compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission Notification no. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/129/Admin/43 dated 3-7-2012. The Audit Committee consisted of the following Directors:

Name Designation Position in the Committee
1. M. Farhad Hussain, FCA Independent Director Chairman
2. Md. Harunoor Rashid Director Member
3. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman Director Member
4. Md. Shamsul Huda Director Member

The Company Secretary & CFO functions as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.
Meeting:

During the year ended 30" June, 2015, the Audit Committee held 8 (Eight) meetings. Proceedings of the
Audit Committee Meeting were reported regularly to the Board of Directors. The details of attendance of
the Audit Committee Members have been shown as below:

Name of the Members No. of Meeting held Attended
1. M. Farhad Hussain, FCA 8 8
2. Md. Harunoor Rashid 8 5
3. Md. Bakhtiar Rahman 8 7
4, Md. Shamsul Huda 8 8

Role of the Audit Committee:

(a) Oversee the financial reporting process:

(b) Monitor and oversee choice of accounting policies and principles, Internal Control Risk
management process, auditing matter, hiring and performance of external auditors.

(c) Review and recommend to the Board to approve the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial
statements prepared for statutory purpose.

(d) Review and consider the report of internal auditors and statutory auditors’ observations on
internal control.

(e) Any other requirement assigned by the Board of Directors.

Activities Carried out during the vear 2014-2015.

01. The committee reviewed the Status of the company and didn’t find any material deviation,
discrepancies or any adverse finding/observation in the area of reporting.

02. The Committee reviewed the integrity of the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements
and recommened to the Board for consideration.

03. The Committee reviewed the Internal audit activities during the year and monthly operational
performance report (MIS).

04. The committee had overseen, reviewed and approved the procedure and task of the internal audit,
financial report preparation and the external audit reports.

05. The committee reviewed the performance and appointment of external auditors.

Date: 21% October’2015 =
Dhaka

(M. Farhad Hussain, FCA)
Chairman
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Annexure-II1

Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.

CEO AND CFO’S CERTIFICATION TO THE BAORD
(As required under the BSEC Guidelines)

The Board of Directors
Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.
66, Dilkusha C/A

Chand Mansion (4th Floor)
Dhaka -1000.

Dear Sirs,

In compliance with the Condition No. 6 of the Corporate Governance Guidlines of Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission’s Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44
dated 07 August’ 2012, we the undersigned Managing Director & CEO and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
respectively of Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd. do hereby Certify to the Board that :

(1) We have reviewed the Financial Statements for the year 2014-2015 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading.

(b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) and other applicable laws.

(i1) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief no transaction enter into by the company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violation of the company’s code of conduct.

W

P
Md. Talha Md. Shawkat Ali

Managing Director & CEO Company Secretary/Chief Financial Officer
Dhaka

20 October 2015
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Annexure-1V

A. Wahab & Co.

Chartered Accountants

To the shareholders of
Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.

Certificate no compliance of conditions of corporate governance by
Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd. for the year ended June 30, 2015.

We have reviewed the relevant documents concerning the company's compliance with the
corporate governance matters. The compliance with corporate governance is the responsibility
of the management of the company.

Basis of opinion

We carried out our review in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Bangladesh Securities &
Exchange Commission under Notification No. SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 07
August 2012 as amended. it is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the company.

Period Covered
Our review for this certificate is confined to the aspects for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our review of relevant documents and also information made available to
us by the management, the company's statuson compliance with corporate governance
requirements as shown in Annexure reflects actual position of the company's compliance with the
condition of Corporate Governance Guidelines of BSEC applicable for listed companies.

bbb

Date: Dhaka (A. WAHAB & CO.)
November 17, 2015 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
l-=g"o\w Hotel Purbanl, Annex-2, 4th floor, 1 Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000
leading edge alliance Tel : (88-02) 8412496, 8812497, 9585626, 9575293, Fax : (88-02) 841249
inovation  qualty excefience A Member firm of The Leading Edge Alliance E-mail : wahab-co @agni.com, nwahab@awahbco.com, Web :ww.awah.

@ SRS (GHGIZ ey e ug qiffe afetaw 2038-205¢ ©



Annexure-V

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No.
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 07 August 2012 issued under section 2CC of
the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:

(Report under Condition No. 7.00)

Condition
No.

Titles

Status

Remarks

Board Of Directors

1.1

Board Size: The number of the Board members of
the company shall not be less than 5 (five) and
more than 20 (twenty).

Complied

Stated in Annexure-1
to The Directors
Report

1.2

Independent Directors

12 ()

Independent Directors: At least one fifth (1/5) of
the total number of Directors in the company’s
Board shall be Independent Directors.

Complied

Present status stated
in Directors’ Report
under note no. 24.

1.2 (ii) (a)

Independent Director does not hold any share or
holds less than 1% shares of the total paid-up
capital.

Complied

1.2 (ii) (b)

Independent Director or his family members are
not connected with the company's any sponsor or
Director or Shareholder who holds 1% or more
shares.

Complied

1.2 (ii) (¢)

Does not have any other relationship, whether
pecuniary or otherwise, with the company or its
subsidiary/associated companies.

Complied

1.2 (i) (d)

Independent Director is not a member, Director or
officer of any Stock Exchange.

Complied

1.2 (ii) (e)

Independent Director is not a shareholder, Director
or officer of any member of Stock Exchange or an
intermediary of the capital market.

Complied

1.2 (i) (D

Independent Director is not a partner or an
executive or was not a partner or an executive
during the preceding 3 (three) years of any
statutory audit firm.

Complied

1.2 (ii) (2)

Independent Director shall not be an Independent
Director in more than 3 (three) listed companies.

Complied

1.2 (i) (h)

Independent Director has not been convicted by a
court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in
payment of any loan to a bank or a Non-Bank
Financial Institution (NBFT).

Complied

1.2 (i) ()

Independent Director has not been convicted for a
criminal offence involving moral turpitude.

Complied

1.2 (iii)

The Independent Director(s) shall be appointed by
the Board of Directors and approved by the
shareholders in the AGM.

Complied

Present status stated
in Directors’ Report
under note no. 24.

1.2 (iv)

The Post of Independent Director(s) can’t remain
vacant for more than 90 (ninety) days.

Complied

Do

12 ()

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct of all
Board members and annual compliance of the
code to be recorded.

Complied

1.2 (vi)

The tenure of office of an Independent Director
shall be for a period of 3 (three) years, which may
be extended for 1 (one) term only.

Complied

Present status stated
in Directors’ Report
under note no. 24.

1.3

Qualification of independent Director (ID)
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1.3 (D)

Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable
individual with integrity who is able to ensure
compliance with financial, regulatory and
corporate laws and can make meaningful
contribution to business.

Complied

1.3 (i)

Independent Director should be a Business
Leader/Corporate Leader/Bureaucrat/University
Teacher with Economics or Business Studies or
Law background/Professionals like Chartered
Accountants, Cost & Management Accountants,
Chartered Secretaries. The Independent Director
must have at least 12 (twelve) years of corporate
management/professional experiences.

Complied

1.3 (iii)

In special cases the above qualifications may be
relaxed subject to prior approval of the
Commission.

Not
Applicable

1.4

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer.

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive officer of the Companies shall be filled by
different individuals. The Chairman of the Company Shall
be elected from among the Directores of the Company. The
Board of Directors shall clearly define respective roles and
responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

Complied

The Managing Director
of the Company plays
the role of CEO.

The Directors’ Report to Shareholders on:

1.5 (i)

Industry outlook and possible future developments
in the industry.

Complied

Stated in the
Directors’ Report.

1.5 (iD)

Segment-wise or product-wise performance.

Not
Applicable

There is only one
item which is selling
in the local market.

1.5 (iil)

Risks and concerns.

Complied

Stated in the Directors’

Report under note no-3.

1.5 (iv)

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit
Margin and Net Profit Margin.

Complied

Stated in the Directors’

Report under note no.-4.

1.5(v)

Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary
gain or loss.

Not
Applicable

Stated in the Directors’
Report under note no-5.

1.5 (vi)

Basis for related party transactions - a statement of
all related party transactions should be disclosed in
the annual report.

Not
Applicable

1.5 (vii)

Utilization of proceeds from public issues, rights
issues and/or through any others instruments.

Not
Applicable

1.5 (viii)

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate
after the company goes for Initial Public Offering
(IPO), Repeat Public Offering (RPO), Rights
Offer, Direct Listing, etc.

Not
Applicable

1.5 (ix)

If significant variance occurs between Quarterly
Financial performance and Annual Financial
Statements the management shall explain about the
variance on their Annual Report.

Complied

A significant variance
is found in the
Deferred Tax. Stated in
the financial statement
under note no. 16

1.5 (x)

Remuneration to Directors including Independent
Directors.

Complied

Stated in the financial
statement under note
no. 35 & 36.

1.5 (xi)

The financial statements prepared by the
management of the issuer company present fairly
its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity.

Complied

1.5 (xii)

Proper books of account of the issuer company
have been maintained.

Complied
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1.5 (xiii)

Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and that the accounting estimates are
based on reasonable and prudent judgment

Complied

As  per  Auditor’s
Report, Note-2.03

1.5 (xiv)

International ~ Accounting  Standards
Bangladesh  Accounting  Standards (BAS)/
International  Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)/Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards
(BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been
followed in preparation of the financial statements
and any departure there-from has been adequately
disclosed.

(IAS)/

Complied

As  per  Auditor’s
Report, Note-2.08

1.5 (xv)

The system of internal control is sound in design
and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

Complied

1.5 (xvi)

There are no significant doubts upon the issuer
company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If the issuer company is not considered to be a
going concern, the fact along with reasons thereof
should be disclosed.

Complied

Stated in the financial
Statements under note no. 2.06

1.5 (xvii)

Significant deviations from the last year’s
operating results of the issuer company shall be
highlighted and the reasons thereof should be
explained.

Complied

Stated in the Directors’
Report under note no. 18

1.5 (xviii)

Key operating and financial data of at least
preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized.

Complied

Stated in the
Directors’ Report
under note no. 19

1.5 (xix)

No declaration of Dividend.

INot Applicable]

Stated in the
Directors’ Report
under note no. 21

1.5 (xx)

The number of Board meetings held during the
year and attendance by each Director shall be
disclosed.

Complied

Stated in Annexure — 1
to the Directors’ report.

1.5 (xxi)

The pattern of shareholding shall be reported to
disclose the aggregate number of shares (along
with name wise details where stated below) held
by:-

1.5 (xx1i) (a)

Parent/Subsidiary/Associated =~ Companies and

other related parties (name wise details);

Complied

Stated in Annexure—1 to
the Directors’ report.

1.5 (xxi) (b)

Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer,
Internal Audit and their spouses
children (name wise details);

Company
Head of
and minor

Complied

Do

1.5 (xxi) (¢)

Executives;

Complied

Do

1.5 (xxi) (d)

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more
votes’ interest in the company (name wise details).

Not
Applicable

1.5 (xxii)

In case of the appointment/re-appointment of a
Director the company shall disclose the following
information to the shareholders:-

> a brief resume of the Director;

> nature of his/her expertise in specific
functional areas;
names of companies in which the person
also holds the Directorship and the
membership of committees of the Board

>

Complied

Stated in the
Directors’ Report
under note no. 23

Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal
Audit and Company Secretary (CS):

O wETEre (GHBIEE fep ffiiee «g A efstawe 2058-205¢




2.1

The company shall appoint a Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), a Head of Internal Audit (internal
Control and Compliance) and a Company Secretary
(CS). The Board of Directors should clearly define
respective roles, responsibilities and duties of CFO,
the Head of Internal Audit and the CS.

Complied

Stated in the
Directors’ report
Annexure —1

2.2

Attendance of CFO and the Company Secretary in
the Board meeting.

Complied

3

The company shall have an Audit Committee as a
sub-committee of the Board of Directors.

Complied

Stated in the
Directors’ report
Annexure —1.

3 (ii)

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board of
Directors’ in ensuring that the financial statements
reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and in ensuring a good monitoring
system within the business.

Complied

3 (iii)

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the
Board of Directors. The duties of the Audit
Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

Complied

Stated in the
Directors’ report in
Annexure —2

3.1(3)

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at
least 3 (three) members.

Complied

Stated in the
Directors’ report in
Annexure —2

3.1 (ii)

The Board of Directors shall appoint members of
the Audit Committee who shall be Directors of the
company and shall include at least 1 (one)
Independent Director.

Complied

3.1 (iii)

All members of the Audit Committee should be
“financially literate” and at least 1 (one) member
shall have accounting or related financial
management experience: The term Financially
literate means the ability to read and understand
the financial statements i.e. Balance Sheet, Income
Statement and Cash Flow Statement and a person
will be considered to have accounting or related
financial management expertise if she possesses
professional qualification or Accounting/finance
graduate with at least 12 (twelve) years of
corporate management/professional experiences.

Complied

3.1 (iv)

Casual vacancy in Audit Committee (AC) shall be
filled by the Board.

Complied

31 (v)

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of
the Committee.

Complied

3.1 (vi)

The quorum of the Audit Committee (AC) meeting
shall not constitute without at least 1 (one)
Independent Director.

Complied

32(3)

The Board of Directors shall select 1 (one)
member of the Audit Committee to be Chairman
of the Audit Committee, who shall be an
Independent Director

Complied

M. Farhad Hussain,
FCA has been appointed
as Independent Director
& Chairman of the
Audit Committee for 3
years with effect from
20-2-2014.

3.2 (ii)

Chairman of the audit committee shall remain
present in the Annual General Meeting.

Complied

33(3)

The Role of Audit Committee: Oversee the
financial reporting process.

Complied

3.3 (ii)

Monitor choice of accounting policies and Principles

Complied
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3.3 (iii) Monitor Internal Control Risk management Complied
process.
3.3 (iv) Oversee hiring and performance of external Complied
auditors.
3.3 () Review along with the management, the annual Complied
financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.
3.3 (vi) Review along with the management, the quarterly Complied
and half yearly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval.
3.3 (vii) Review the adequacy of internal audit function. Complied
3.3 (viii) Review statement of significant related party Not
transactions submitted by the management. Applicable
3.3 (ix) Review Management Letters/ Letter of Internal Complied
Control weakness issued by statutory auditors.
3.3 () When money is raised through Initial Public Not
Offering IPO)/Repeat Public Offering | Applicable
(RPO)/Rights Issue the company shall disclose to
the Audit Committee about the uses/applications
of funds by major category (capital expenditure,
sales and marketing expenses, working capital,
etc), on a quarterly basis, as a part of their
quarterly declaration of financial results. Further,
on an annual basis, the company shall prepare a
statement of funds utilized for the purposes other
than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus
3.4 Reporting of Audit Committee:-
3.4.1 (1) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities Complied
to the Board of Directors.
3.4.1 (ii) (a)| Report on conflicts of interests to the Board of Not There was no
Directors. Applicable | reportable case of
conflict of interest in
2014 - 2015
3.4.1 (i1) (b)| Will report any suspected or presumed fraud or Not There was no such
irregularity or material defect in the internal | Applicable | casein 2014 - 2015
control system to the Board.
3.4.1 (ii) (¢)| Will report any suspected infringement of laws, Not Do
including securities related laws, rules and | Applicable
regulations to the Board.
3.4.1 (i1) (d)] Will report any other matter which shall be Not Do
disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately. Applicable
34.2 Reporting to the Authorities: If the Audit Not Do
Committee has reported to the Board of Directors | Applicable

about anything which has material impact on the
financial condition and results of operation and has
discussed with the Board of Directors and the
management that any rectification is necessary and
if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification
has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit
Committee shall report such finding to the
Commission, upon reporting of such matters to the
Board of Directors for three times or completion of
a period of 6 (six) months from the date of first
reporting to the Board of Directors, whichever is
earlier.
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3.5

Reporting to the Shareholders and General
Investors: report on activities carried out by the
Audit Committee, including any report made to the
Board of Directors under condition 3.4.1 (ii) above
during the year, shall be signed by the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual
report of the issuer company.

Not
Applicable

There were no such
cases under the
condition 3.4.1 (ii) in
2014 - 2015

4 (1)

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in
appraisal or valuation services or fairness
opinions.

Complied

4 (ii)

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in
financial information systems design and
implementation.

Complied

4 (iii)

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in
Book-keeping or other services related to the
accounting records or financial statements.

Complied

4 (iv)

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in
Broker-dealer services.

Complied

4 )

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in
Actuarial services.

Complied

4 (vi)

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in
Internal audit services.

Complied

4 (vii)

Non-engagement of external/statutory auditors in
any other service that the Audit Committee
determines.

Complied

4 (viii)

No partner or employees of the external audit
firms shall possess any share of the company they
audit at least during the tenure of their audit
assignment of that company.

Complied

4 (ix)

Audit/certification services on compliance of
corporate governance as required under clause (i)
of condition no 7.

Complied

5()

Provisions relating to the composition of the Board
of Directors of the holding company shall be made
applicable to the composition of the Board of
Directors of the subsidiary company.

Not
Applicable

There is no subsidiary
Company of Alhaj
Textile Mills Ltd.

5 (i)

At least 1 (one) Independent Director on the Board
of Directors of the holding company shall be a
Director on the Board of Directors of the
subsidiary company.

Not
Applicable

Do

5 (iii)

The minutes of the Board meeting of the
subsidiary company shall be placed for review at
the following Board meeting of the holding
company.

Not
Applicable

Do

5 (iv)

The minutes of the respective Board meeting of
the holding company shall state that they have
reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company
also.

Not
Applicable

5(W)

The Audit Committee of the holding company
shall also review the financial statements, in
particular the investments made by the subsidiary
company.

Not
Applicable
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6 (1) (a)

The CEO and CFO will certify to the Board that
they have reviewed the financial statements and
believe that these statements do not contain any
materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be
misleading.

Complied

Stated in the Directors’
report in Annexure-3

6 () (b)

The CEO and CFO will certify to the Board that
they have reviewed the financial statements and
believe that these statements together present a
true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards
and applicable laws.

Complied

6 (i)

There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no
transactions entered into by the company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violation
of the company’s code of conduct.

Complied

7@)

The company shall obtain a certificate from a
Professional ~ Chartered Secretary/Accountants
(Chartered Accountants/Cost & Management
Accountants/Chartered ~ Secretary)  regarding
compliance ~ of  conditions of  Corporate
Governance Guidelines of the Commission and
shall send the same to the shareholders along with
the Annual Report on a yearly basis.

Complied

7 (i)

The Directors of the company shall state, in
accordance with the Annexure attached, in the
Directors' report whether the company has
complied with these conditions.

Complied
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
27, Bijoy Nagar, Shaj Bhaban (6™ floor), B-11
Dhaka-1000
Phone : 8311197, 9362649, 9358787

Reference Date: 28-10-2015

AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30" June, 2015, Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes and all related
Consolidated Financial Statements of Alhaj Textile Mills Limited.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act, 1994, The
Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and the other applicable laws and regulations. The
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an independent opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud and error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standards (BFRS), give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30™ June, 2015
and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended and comply with the
Companies Act, 1994, the Securities & Exchange Rules, 1987, and other applicable laws and
regulations.

We also report that:
(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so
far as it appeared from our examination of those books;

(c) The company’s Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income dealt
with the report are in agreement with the books of account; and

(d) The expenfliture incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

ALAM MANSUR & CO.
Accountants
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
S f Fi ial Positi
As at 30 June, 2015
PARTICULAR; Notes S TT Amountin Taka
ASSETS & PROPERTIES
A. | Non-Current Assets:
Net Tangible Fixed Assets (At cost less accumulated
depreciation) 3 120,046,280 135,253,548
Investment (At Cost) 4 5,000,841 5,000,841
Deferred Revenue Expenditure 5 2,796,798 -
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 127,843,919 140,254,389
B. | Current Assets:
Inventories 6 140,074,620 104,829,428
Debtors 7 1,888,493 1,888,493
Advances, Deposits and Prepayments 8 63,540,215 60,894,994
Investment in FDR 9 141,941,591 171,916,290
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10 29,256,147 6,428,401
Total Current Assets (B) 376,701,066 345,957,606
Total Assets & Properties (A+B) 504,544,985 486,211,995
C EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Equity:
Share Capital 11 152,302,100 126,918,420
Reserve and Surplus 12 19,009,243 20,931,161
Tax Holiday Reserve 13 10,747,334 10,747,334
Retained Earnings As per Profit & Loss A/C 14 30,032,934 30,233,454
Total Shareholders' Equity (C) 212,091,611 188,830,369
D | Non-Current Liabilities:
Long Term Loan Fund 15 139,123,633 139,123,633
Deferred Tax ( Liabilities) 16 14,473,406 14,849,910
Total Non-Current Liabilities (D) 153,597,039 153,973,543
E Current Liabilities and Provisions:
Advance Against Sales 17 346,088 348,433
Security and Other Deposits 18 2,519,822 2,519,822
Other Current Liabilities 19 95,551,678 102,520,390
Current Tax Liability 20 1,683,911 1,683,911
Provision for Taxes 21 14,304,743 9,703,202
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 23 4,318,732 4,578,018
Bank Overdraft 24 18,772,080 18,772,080
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 25 1,359,281 3,282,227
Total Current Liabilities (E) 138,856,335 143,408,083
Total Liabilities F= (D+E) 292,453,374 | | 297,381,626
G _|Total Capital & Liabilities G=(C+F) 504,544,985 486,211,995
Number of share used 15,230,210 12,691,842
Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) 26 13.93 14.88
The Wicies and other notes form an integral part 1f tﬂese financial statements .
Company Secretary & CFO Managim & CEO Director

This is the Statement of Financial Position
referred to in our report of even date.

Dated: October 28, 2015 Haque S am Mansur & Co.
Place: Dhaka Chartered_Xccountants
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2015
Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
PARTICULARS Notes| 39 June 2015 30 June 2014

Revenue (Turnover) 27 266,644,659 288,527,739
Less : Cost of Sales 28 (232.,965.776) (250,535,498)
Gross Profit 33,678,883 37,992,241
Less: Operating Expenses:
Administrative Expenses 29 (17,051,363) (17,753,624)
Selling & Distribution Expenses 30 (1,119,703) (720,255)
Loss on Sale of computer - - (1,472)
Inventory adjustment 31 - (2,279)
Total Operating Expense (18,171,066) (18,477,630)
Operating Profit 15,507,817 19,514,611
Less: Financial Expenses:
Interest on Bank C.C Limit - -
Interest on Long term loan - -
Total Financial Expense - -
Net Operating Profit 15,507,817 | 19,514,611 |
Add:Non Operating Income:
Bank Interest Received from STD A/C 102,802 533,059
Interest Received from Investment in FDR 11,567,882 6,168,681
Other Income 116,400 1,500
Dividend Received from CDBL 1,250,000 1,250,000
Total Non operating Income 13,037,084 7,953,240
Net Profit before W.P.P.F 28,544,901 27,467,851
Less: Workers Profit Participation Fund @ 5% (1,359,281) (1,307,993)
Net Profit before Tax 27,185,620 26,159,858
Deferred Tax Income 376,504 -
Less.Provision for Income Tax 32 (6,792.437) (4,800,176)
Net profit after Tax 20,769,687 21,359,682
Earning per share (EPS) (Per Value Taka | 33 1.36 1.40
10) (restated)

The accounting poleies and other notes form an integra! pErt of these financial state?‘is .

Ditector

Company Secretary & CFO Managing Director & CEO

This is the Statement of Comprehensive Income
referred to, in our geport of even date.

Dated: October 28, 2015
Place: Dhaka

D

Haque ShahAlam Mansur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

A A M CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
S f C in Equi
Eor the year ended 30 June 2015
Share Tax Holiday | Reserves & Retained Total
Particulars Capital Reserve Surplus Earnings Equity
Amount [Tk.]| Amount [Tk.]| Amount [Tk.] | Amount [Tk.] | Amount [Tk.]
Balance as on 1st July,2014: - - - 30,233,454 30,233,454
Share capital 126,918,420 - - - 126,918,420
Tax Holiday Reserve - 10,747,334 - - 10,747,334
Capital Reserve - - 21,350 - 21,350
General Reserve - - 1,395,080 - 1,395,080
Reserve on revaluation of Fixed Assets - - 19,514,731 - 19,514,731
Net Profit during the year - - 20,769,687 20,769,687
Prior year's adjustment for : -
Company Income Tax - - - 413,368 413,368
Trade Creditors - - - 1,777,935 1,777,935
Other Advance and Prepayment - - - (413,142) (413,142)
Provision for Other Expenses - - - 711,131 711,131
Advance Against Sales - - - 2,263 2,263
Issue of Bonus Share (2013-2014) 25,383,680 - - (25,383,680) -
Depreciation of Reserve on Revaluation of
Fixed Assets (2014-15) - - (1,921,918) 1,921,918 -
Balance as on 30th June,2015 152,302,100 10,747,334 19,009,243 30,032,934 | 212,091,611
ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
S f CI in Equi
Eor the year ended 30 June 2014
Share Tax Holiday | Reserves & Retained Total
Particulars Capital Reserve Surplus Earnings Equity
Amount [Tk.]| Amount [Tk.]| Amount [Tk.] | Amount [Tk.] | Amount [Tk.]
Balance as on 1st July,2013 101,534,740 10,747,334 25,583,890 30,007,953 167,873,917
Net Profit during the year - - - 21,359,682 21,359,682
Prior year's adjustment for:
Telephone Bill - - - 604 604
Interest on land revenue - - - (101,745) (101,745)
Gain from exchange of foreign currency - - - 312,836 312,836
against export sale.
Trade Creditors - - - 2,481 2,481
Advance Against Sale - - - 4,330 4,330
Issue of Bonus Share (2012-2013) 25,383,680 (25,383,680) -
Provision for Income Tax for th year 2012-13 (621,736) (621,736)
Current year's adjustment for: -
Depreciation of Reserve on Revaluation of - - (2,178,994) 2,178,994 -
Fixed Assets (2013-14)
Depreciation of Reserve on Revaluation of - - (2,473,735) 2,473,735 -
Fixed Assets (2012-13)
Balance as on 30th June,2014 126,918,420 10,747,334 20,931,161 30,233,454 188,830,369

The accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements .

ManaginrgDirector& CEO

D'E]//;ctor

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity
referred to in our report of even date.

Haque Shalt Alam Mansur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dated: October 28, 2015
Place: Dhaka
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Statement of Cash Flows
Eor the year ended 30 June,2015
Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
PARTICULARS
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
1 IVITI

Collection from Turnover and Others 268,252,308 371,524,933
Payment for Cost and Expenses (295,366,935) (245,828,989)
Advance Income Tax (1,611,349) (2,989,346)
Total Cash Flows from Operating Activities (A) (28,725,976) 122,706,598
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Interest Received 11,670,684 6,701,740
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (1,324,359) (1,616,488)
Investment in Non-Current Assets (FDRs) (31,747,000) (151,918,602)
Received from Investment in FDRs 71,704,397 20,283,562
Dividend received from CDBL 1,250,000 1,250,000
Total Cash Flows From Investing Activities (B) 51,553,722 (125,299,788)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Long Term Loan Account - -
Bank Overdraft (Repaid)/Increase - -
Cash Loan received - -
Total Cash Flows From Financing Activities ( C) - -
NET CASH INFLOW/OUTFLOW FOR THE YEAR:
Net Cash inflow/Outflow for the year (A+ B+C) 22,827,746 (2,593,190)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 6,428,401 9,021,591
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 29,256,147 6,428,401
Net Operating Cash Flow per share | (1.89)] | 9.67 |

The accounting policies and other notes form an integral part of these financial statements .

Compan/y\g':zry & CFO Managing Director & CEO Diréctor

This is the Statement Cash Flows
referred to in our report of even date.

Haque Shahé Mansur & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Dated: October 28, 2015
Place: Dhaka
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ALHAJ TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June, 2015

The Company & Its Operations:

Legal form of the Company:

Alhaj Textile Mills Limited, the Company was incorporated on March 3, 1961 as ‘Private’ Company, limited by
shares and registered with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms under the Companies Act, 1913
(subsequently amended in the year 1994) vide its Registration No. 1517. Subsequently this Private Limited
Company was converted into a Public Limited Company by shares on October 7, 1967.

Enlistment with the Stock Exchange
Company was listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) in the year 1968 and trading shares of
the Company since then.

Address of the Registered & Corporate Office:
The registered office and principal place of business of the company is located at 66, Dilkusha Commercial
Area (4th Floor), Dhaka-1000 and its factory is situated at |. K. Road, Ishurdi, Pabna.

Nature of Business Activities:
The principal activities of the Company throughout the year are to manufacture cotton yarn and market its
product in local and foreign markets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Basis of Preparation, Presentation and Disclosure of the Financial Statements:

The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information are made in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, International Accounting Standard (IAS) and
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS), adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh (ICAB), as Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) & Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standard (BFRS). The Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income have
been prepared according to BAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” based on accrual basis of
accounting following going concern assumption under generally accepted accounting principles and
practices in Bangladesh and Statement of Cash Flows according to BAS-7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

Accounting Convention & Assumption:
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

Principal Accounting Policies:

The specific accounting policies have been selected and applied by the Company's management for
significant transactions and events that have a material effect within the Framework for preparation and
presentation of the financial statements. Financial statements have been prepared and presented in
compliance with BAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The previous year's figures were
formulated according to the same accounting principles. Compared to the previous year, there were no
significant changes in the accounting and valuation policies affecting the financial position and performance
of the Company. However, changes made to the presentation are explained in the note for each respective
item. Accounting and valuation methods are disclosed for reasons of clarity. The Company classified the
expenses using the function of expenses method as per BAS-1.

Legal Compliance:

The financial statements have been prepared and the disclosures of information were made in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, Listing
Regulations of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and other laws and regulations applicable in
Bangladesh. On the basis of these regulations, Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) & Bangladesh
Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS) were applied with the applicable standards at the Statement of
Financial Position date.

Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumptions & Judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with BFRS that requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies.
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Going Concern:
The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reasons
the directors continue to adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Components of the Financial Statements:
According to the Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS)-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” the
complete set of Financial Statements includes the following components”:
sStatement of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2015;
»  Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June, 2015;
=Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June, 2015;
»Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June, 2015 and
=Notes, comprising a summary of significant Accounting Policies and Other
Explanatory Information.

Application of Standards:

The following BASs are applied for the financial statements of the year under review:
BAS-1 Presentation of Financial Statements;

BAS-2 Inventories;

BAS-7 Statement of Cash Flow;

BAS-8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;
BAS-10  Events after the Balance Sheet Date;

BAS-12  Income Taxes;

BAS-16  Property, Plant & Equipment;

BAS-18  Revenues;

BAS-19  Employee Benefits;

BAS-21  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

BAS-24  Related Party Disclosures;

BAS-33  Earnings per Share;

BAS-34 Interim Financial Reporting;

BAS-36  Impairment of Assets;

BAS-37  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;

Property, Plant & Equipment:

a. Recognition and Measurement:
In compliance with BAS-16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) items of Property, Plant and Equipment
(PPE), excluding land is initially measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. Land is measured at
cost. The cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-refundable taxes
after deducting trade discount and rebates and any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner.

b. Subsequent Costs:
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The day to day maintenance cost, on PPE, is
recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred.

c. Depreciation:
No depreciation is charged on land.
Consistently, depreciation is provided on diminishing balance method based on written down value at
which the asset is carried in the books of account. Depreciation continues to be provided until such time
as the written down value is reduced to taka one.

Depreciation on acquisition is made for the period of acquisition and charging no depreciation on item
ceases for the year in which the deletion thereof takes place.
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

The estimated useful lives of PPE for the current period expressed in % of rates are as follows:

As at June 30,
SI. No Name of the Assets 2015
(in years)

A Land & Land Development
1 Land )
2 Land & Land Development 7%
B Building & Others Construction
1 Building & Construction 5%
2 Other Building, Construction & Installation 10%
3 H/O Interior Decoration 259%
c Plant & Machineries:
1 Air Compressor, Testing Lab, Grinding, Boiler Installation, Water 10%

Treatment Gas Pipeline, Fire Fighting and Other Machines

Machine
2 All Other Workshop, Power House, Fire Fighting, Office, Transport,

Loose Tools, Laboratory & Appliance 15%
3 Laboratory Appliance & Cooling Tower 20%
4 Plant and Machinery (Evaluation Unit) 259,
5 Gas Generator Overhauling 30%
D Motor Car & Vehicle:
1 Motor Car, By-Cycle & Truck 20%
E Furniture & Fixture:
1 All Furniture 10%
2 Air Condition and Residential Furniture 20%
F Other Sundry Assets
1 Soft Furnish, Arms and Ammunition 15%

Books, Groceries, Radio, TV, Interior, Telephone, Mobile, Mike, 20%
2 Software, Fax Sign Board, Refrigerator, Water Tank, Games &

Sports and others.
3 C.C. Camera 25%

Computer Machine 30%

d. Retirements and Disposals:
An asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
and subsequent disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognized as gain or loss from disposal of asset under other income in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

2.10 Impairment of Assets:
All assets have been reviewed according to BAS-36 and it was confirmed that no such assets have been
impaired during the year and for this reason no provision has been made for impairment of assets.

2.11 Inventories:

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process. Inventories are
stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value in compliance to the requirements of Para 21 and 25 of
BAS-2. Costs including an appropriate portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses are assigned to
inventories by the method most appropriate to the particular class of inventory. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price for the inventories less all estimated cost of completion and cost
necessary to make the sale. ltem wise valuation is as follows:

O weTRIE (GBI e ffiiee «a qifife efstame 2038-305¢

180



HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

Category of Inventories Basis of Valuation CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Raw Cotton - At cost basis.
Work-in-Progress - Considering value of raw material cost.
Finished Goods - At a realizable value i.e cost price.
Stores and Spares - At average cost basis.
Store-in-transit - Includes C & F value and other charges
incurred in pipe line.
Stock at Electric Section - On average method.
Wastage Stock - At realisable value.

212 Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash & cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash at banks of the Company. There is an insignificant risk
of change in value of the same.

213 Creditors & Accrued Expenses:

2.13.1 Trade & Other Payables:
Liabilities are recorded at the amount payable for settlement in respect of goods and services received by
the Company. These includes Advance against Sales, Security and Other Deposits and Other Current
Liabilities

2.13.2 Provisions:
The preparation of financial statements are in conformity with Bangladesh Accounting Standards, BAS-37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets which requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the disclosure requirements for contingent assets and liabilities during and at the date of the financial
statements.

214 Employees' Benefit:
Employees of the Company are entitled to get the following benefits from the Company:

a. Gratuity:
Gratuity benefit has been stopped by the management from July’ 2005.

b. Festival Bonus:
The Company gives two festival bonuses to its permanent employees each year.

c. Workers' Profit Participation Fund:
This represents 5% of the net profit after charging such WPPF Contribution but before income tax
contribution by the Company as per provisions of Bangladesh Labour Law, 2006 and is payable to the
workers as define under the said Law.

2.15 Income Tax:

2151 Current Tax:
Provision for taxation has been made as per rates prescribed in the Finance Act, 2015 and the Income Tax
Ordinance, 1984 on profit made by the company. As per Bas-12 Income Tax provision has been made
during the year as the company earned taxable income.

2.15.2 Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The company
recognized deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences on actual assessment basis.
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:

Contingent liabilities and assets are current or possible obligations or assets, arising from past events and
whose existence is due to the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which
are not within the control of the Company. In accordance with BAS-37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition:

In compliance with the requirements of BAS-18 “Revenue”, revenue is recognized only when:
= The products are invoiced and dispatched to the customers; and
= |nterest income is recognized on accrual basis.

Revenue from sales is exclusive of VAT.

Foreign Currency Translation:

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Bangladesh Taka at the foreign exchange rate ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the
Statement of Financial Position date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, stated at historical cost are translated into Bangladesh Taka at the exchange rate ruling at the
date of transaction.

Statements of Cash Flows:
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with BAS-7: Statement of Cash Flows and
the cash flows from operating activities have been presented under direct method.

Earning per Share:

The Company calculates Earning per Share (EPS) in accordance with BAS-33: “Earning per Share”, which
has been shown on the face of Statement of Comprehensive Income, and the computation of EPS is stated
in the note. Earning per Share is the basic earnings, retrospective effect of which has been given for
calculation of previous year earning as well.

Segment Reporting:
No segmental reporting is applicable for the company as required by BAS-14: “Segment Reporting” as the
company operates in a single industry segment and within a single geographical territory.

Comparative:

Financial statements are presented as BAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and previous year’s
figures have been restated due to changes in some accounting policies as per BAS-8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.

Reporting Period:
The financial statements cover one year from 01July, 2014 to 30 June, 2015.

General:

Wherever considered necessary, previous year's figures have been rearranged for the purpose of
comparison;

(Figures appearing in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest taka.)
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

. . CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Net Tangible Fixed A : Tk 120.046.2
Particul Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
The above balance is made up as follows:
Opening Balance 370,007,251 368,419,943
Add: Addition during the year 1,324,359 1,616,488
371,331,610 370,036,431
Less: Adjustment during the year - (29,180)
371,331,610 370,007,251
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 268,878,143 (254,268,434)
Net Written Down Value as on 30.06.2015 102,453,467 115,738,817
Increase in value on revaluation of fixed assets 19,514,731 21,693,725
Less: Depreciation during the year (1,921,918) (2,178,994)
Net Increase in value on Revaluation as on 17,592,813 19,514,731
30.06.2015
Net Tangible Fixed Assets (A+B) 120,046,280 135,253,548
(Details of Fixed Assets has been shown in Schedule-1 & 2)
Investment: Tk 41
] . in Tal : in Tal
Particulars 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Investment in Shares of Alhaj Jute Mills Ltd. 841 841
Investment in Shares of CDBL (Equity) 1,000,000 1,000,000
(Bonus Share) 4,000,000 4,000,000
Total 5,000,841 5,000,841

a) The company hold 90 shares of the Alhaj Jute Mills Limited since long. The face value of the share is Tk.
10.00 each but in 1982 when the Jute Mill was De-Nationalized Government has fixed the price of per share
at Tk. 9.34. Hence for 90 shares Company paid Tk. 840.60 to the Government which is shown in the

Statement of Financial Position.

b) CDBL in its AGM held on date:15.12.2011 approved and allowed Bonus shares in 4:1 ratio for the share
holders and confirmed by its letter date:01.02.2012. Accordingly the company holds 500,000 shares of

Tk.10.00 each of CDBL as on June 30, 2012.

Deferred Revenue Expenditure: Tk 2.796.798

Particul Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Air Compressure Machine 100,027 -
Gas Generator Top Overhauling 2,520,313 -
Cooling Tower Infill 176,458 -
Total 2,796,798 -
Inventories: Tk 140.074.620
Particulars 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Raw Cotton (Note-6.01) 19,903,198 11,847,421
Raw Cotton in Transit 5,314 -
Work in Process (Note-6.02) 3,686,764 5,185,654
Finished Goods (Note-6.03) 91,081,131 61,118,494
Stores and Spares (Note-6.04) 20,266,875 21,687,875
Store in Transit (Note-6.05) 3,529,091 3,529,091
Stock at Electric Section 696,296 738,336
Wastage Stock 905,951 722,557
Total 140,074,620 104,829,428

Physical verification of the inventory was carried out by Statutory Audit Firm Haque Shahalam Mansur &
Co.Stock has been valued as per Physical Inventory by the Management.

The basis of valuation is stated in Note-2.11
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
6.01 Raw Cotton : 2014-2015
Quantity (Kg) Amount (Tk)
Opening Stock of Raw Cotton 49,464 11,847,421
Add. Purchase during the year 1,342,177 201,715,434
Raw Cotton available for use 1,391,641 213,562,855
Less. Closing Stock (131,434) (19,903,198)
Consumption during the year __ 1,260,207 _ 193,659,657
le Wi n : Quantity (Kg) Amount (Tk)
Opening Stock of useable waste 6,108 392,312
Add. Recovered during the year 140,125 5,786,898
Available for use 146,233 6,179,210
Less. Closing Stock (1,208) (102,205)
Available for Willow Processing & consumption 145,025 _______ 6,077,005
6.02 Work in-Process: Tk 3.686.764
Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
14-2015 2013-2014
Sl Mo. FARICULAZS Qtyin Total Qty in Total
(Kg.) Value (Tk) (Kg.) Value (Tk)
1 Mill No: 45/1 Polyester Cone - - 920 49,104
2 80/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone (Corn Br) 3,663 998,282 4,663 1,174,676
3 64/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone (Corn Br) 431 81,617 2,063 457,639
4 58/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone (Corn Br) 5,762 925,168 - -
5 54/1 Auto Cone/ 40/1 Sup Cotton Yarn in HK 20 2,867 17,620 3,191,804
6 40/1 Auto Cone/ 40/1 Cotton Yarn in HK 10,852 1,414,824 509 64,191
7 30/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone - - 395 53,135
8 20/1, Rotor Cotton Yarn in Cone 1,311 85,677 - -
9 16/1 Rotor Cotton Yarn in Cone 1,841 128,388 210 15,006
10 |10/1 Rotor Cotton Yarn in Cone 1,249 49,941 638 39,889
11 Pump Takarin - - 1,080 64,273
12 |Flat Strip - - 985 64,944
13 |Fan Dust - - 150 2,102
14 |Doffing-1 - - 67 6,958
15 |Tencel - - 30 1,933
Total 25,129 3,686,764 29,330 5,185,654
6.03
Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
14-2015 2013-2014
SINo. PARTICULARS Qty in Total Qty in Total
(Kg.) Value (Tk) (Kg.) Value (Tk)
1 80/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone Corn Br 4,944 2,369,344 10,433 4,856,698
2 64/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone Corn Br 22,952 8,128,650 9,616 3,694,424
3 58/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone Corn Br 24,812 7,228,501 - -
4 54/1 Auto Cotton Yarn in Cone (Solar Brand) 204,982 57,765,504 128,142 38,126,196
5 40/1 Super Cotton Yarn in HK Corn Br. 181.44 43,772 9,211,335 18,144 5,218,142
6 30/1 Auto Cone Shanti 13,608 2,437,901 - -
7 20/1Carded Cone Rotor 8,029 903,013 - -
8 16/1 Rotor Cotton Cone 20,231 2,513,792 7,484 888,849
9 10/1 Rotor Cotton Cone 6,305 523,091 24,449 2,185,860
10 |60/1 Combed Cotton Yarn in Cone - - 15,001 6,148,325
Total 349,635 91,081,131 213,270 61,118,494
6.04 Stores & Spares: Tk. 20.266.875
Sl PARTICULARS Amount in Taka || Amount in Taka
No. T 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
1 Construction Materials 1,312 -
2 Iron & Steel 80,975 77,351
3 Pipes, Tube & Fitting 67,694 41,940
4 Fuel, Oil & Lubricants 297,053 338,532
5 Raw Materials & Chemicals - 278
6 Paint and Varnish 1,622 532
7 General Hardwares 141,455 128,381
8 Loose Tools 56,731 57,802
9 Domestic Equipment 2,348 1,126
10 |Furniture & Fixtures 1,717 1,717
11 |Packing Materials 1,366,139 1,777,382
12 |Laboratories Appliance 108,423 108,423
13 |Mechanical Equipment & Spare parts 14,952,298 15,637,377
14 |Electrical Equipment & Spares 3,144,883 3,473,547
15 | Office Equipment 630 1,120
16 |Miscellaneous Stock 43,595 42,367
Total 20,266,875 21,687,875
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6.05 o, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
] Stores - In - Transit: Tk, 3.529.091
in Tal in Tal
PARTICULARS
L/C No.4006/408/11,/2001 3,529,091 3,529,091
Total 3,529,091 3,529,091
Debtors: Tk. 1.888.493
The above balance is as follows:
Particulars Notes Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
Trade Debtors: 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Amount receivable against Export sale as per last
account 7.01 1,627,379 1,627,379
Sundry Debtors:
Accrued Income (Interest on FDR lien with PGCL) 261,114 261,114
Total Trade Debtors 1,888,493 1,888,493
Trade Debtors: Tk 1,627,379
Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
PARTICULAR;
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Mrs Tarunno Check Fabrics 1,373,303 1,373,303
Mrs. Suhi Industrial Park Ltd 254,076 254,076
Total 1,627,379 1,627,379
Advances, Deposits and Pre-Payments : Tk 40,21
This is unsecured, considered good and Notes Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
consists of the following balances: 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
ADVANCEs:
Advance against salary & wages 8.01 - 39,000
Advance against TA/DA 8.02 14,173 6,000
Advance against purchase 8.03 94,450 47,486
Advance Against Company Income Tax 8.04 9,426,736 7,956,105
Other advances & Prepayment 8.05 247,928 758,901
Advance Against Supply 1,454,079 9,042
Total Advance 11,237,366 8,816,534
DEPOSITS:
Custom Deposit 148,672 140,225
Deposit at Agrani bank against BTMC 50,761,093 50,761,093
liabilities(Principal)
Bank guarantee against custom deposit for 34,290 34,290
Humidification Plant
Against Oxygen Cylinder 4,000 4,000
Against Telephone 13,300 13,300
Against Telephone (CDBL) 49,600 49,600
Against Gas Line (Pashchimanchal Gas Co. Ltd ) 734,948 734,948
Total Deposits 51,745,903 51,737,456
PREPAYMENT:
Pre-paid Insurance 8.06 556,946 341,004
Total Pre-payment 556,946 341,004
Total Advances, Deposits & Pre-Payments 63,540,215 60,894,994
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
8.01 Advances Against Salary: Tk, Nil
Particulars Designation | "39 jyne 2015 | 30June 2014
Md.Shamsul Haque Officer (Desp.) - 2,500
Md.Atiqur Rahman Sr. A.O - 22,500
Md .Jalal Uddin A.O - 5,000
Mr.Sojib Mondal Jr. Officer - 9,000
Total - 39,000
802 Advances Against TAIDA; Tk 14,173
. Desi - : in Tal A in Tal
Particulars 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014
Md. Aktaruzzaman A.G.M (P & M) 4,753 5,000
Md. Hazrat Ali Supervisor - 1,000
Md. Golam Morshed A.O 7,000 -
Md.Shamimul Islam Accounts Officer 1,210 -
Md.Mohiuddin patuary Audit Officer 1,210 -
Total 14,173 6,000
8.03 Advances Against Purchase: Tk, 94.450
_ - - : in Tal A in Tal
Particulars 30June 2015 | 30.June 2014
Md.Golam Morshed A.A.O 21,905 7,601
Md. Abul Hossain M.com 61,972 29,312
Md. Abdur Razzak L.O 10,573 10,573
Total 94,450 47,486
8.04 Advan Adgain mpany Income Tax; Tk. 9.426.736
Particulars el 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014
Assessment Year
1986-1987 1987-88 705,708 705,708
1997-1998 1998-99 5,445 5,445
1998-1999 1999-2000 28,858 28,858
2002-2003 2003-2004 33,174 33,174
2005-2006 2006-2007 126,226 126,226
2008-2009 2009-2010 3,387,331 3,387,331
2009-2010 2010-2011 63,771 63,771
2011-2012 2012-2013 - 140,718
2012-2013 2013-2014 475,528 475,528
2013-2014 2014-2015 2,989,346 2,989,346
2014-2015 2015-2016 1,611,349 -
Total 9,426,736 7,956,105
8.05 her Advan Pr ment; Tk. 247.92
Particulars Designation | "5 )00 2015 | 30.June 2014
M/s. Alhaj Jute Mills Ltd. - 121,155
Md. Abdur Rakib Advocate - 40,800
Md. Abu Naser S.K. Siddique Advocate - 122,342
Md. Abdur Razzak Ex. L.O 39,166 39,166
Banaladesh General Insurance Co. (BGIC) 90,000 90,000
Md. Golam Murshed A.O 49,262 36,055
Md. Akhtaruzzaman A.G.M (P & M) 37,000 22,000
Shamsul Haque Officer (Despas) - 7,280
ASSL Textile Suppliar - 1,058
The New Dolphin Electronic Suppliar - 45
Md. Abdur Rashid DGM (Com.) 20,000 23,000
Md. Aminur Islam Security Gurd - 6,000
Techno Aliens Suppliar 12,500 -
The Muslim Ltd. - 250,000
Total 247,928 758,901
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

Prepaid Insurance: Tk. 556,946 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Particul Date Amount in Taka [ Amount in Taka
BGIC/DZO/FP-0314/07/2013 25/7/113 - 81,883
BGIC/DZO/FP-0578/12/13 19/12/13 - 24,528
BGIC/DZO/FP-0581/12/13 19/12/13 - 39,245
BGIC/DZO/FP-0580/12/13 19/12/13 - 66,580
BGIC/DZO/FP-0579/12/13 19/12/13 - 93,217
BGIC/DZO/FP-0341/07/14 3/7/2014 345 -
BGIC/DZO/FP-0374/07/2014 23/7/14 10,558 -
BGIC/DZO/FP-0373/07/2014 24/7/14 176,363 -
BGIC/DZO/FP-0605/12/2014 23/12/14 7,849 -
BGIC/DZO/FP-0606/12/2014 23/12/14 24,528 -
BGIC/DZO/FP-0607/12/2014 23/12/14 93,218 -
BGIC/DZO/FP-0608/12/2014 24/12/14 68,242 -
BGIC/DZO/FP-0609/12/2014 23/12/14 52,970 -
BGIC/DZO/MV/PV/CFRT-0296/7/13 4/7/2013 - 1,378
BGIC/DZO/MV/PV/ENDT-0069/07/13 4/7/2013 - 1,594
BGIC/DZO/F/ENDT-0081/11/14 26/11/14 11,478 -
BGIC/DZO/F/ENDT-0080/11/14 26/11/14 691 -
BGIC/DZO/F/ENDT-0079/11/14 26/11/14 1,540 -
BGIC/DZO/MV/PV/CFRT-2680/11/14 (Comp) - 5,759 -
BGIC/DZO/MV/PV/CERT-0109/01/15 (Comp) - 11,989 -
BGIC/DZO/MV/PV/CERT-2838/11/13 18/11/13 - 1,457
BGIC/DZO/PV/CERT-2969/12/2014 14/12/14 3,782 -
BGIC/DZO/MV/PV/CERT-0181/1/14 16/1/14 - 11,990
BGIC/DZO/MV/PV/CERT-3118/12/13 19/12/13 - 3,797
BGIC/DZO/FP-0580/12/13 19/12/13 - 1,767
BGIC/DZO/FP--0316/07/2013 21/7/113 - 2,713
BGIC/DZO/FP-0577/12/13 19/12/13 - 7,849
BGIC/DZO/MISC/CIT/P-0004/01/14 8/1/2014 - 3,006
ATM/HO/Acctt/-01/2015/1254 12/4/2015 12,103 -
BGIC/DZO/MC-0877/04/2015 75,531 -
Total 556,946 341,004
Investment in FDR: Tk.141.941.591
Particul Principl Int ¢ Amount in Taka [ Amount in Taka
Prime Bank Ltd. (FDR) 17,500,000 2,638,978 20,138,978 21,541,074
Bangladesh Development Bank Ltd. (FDR) 10,000,000 555,311 10,555,311 -
Sonali Bank Ltd. (FDR) 50,000,000 5,214,279 55,214,279 51,414,406
Eastern Bank Ltd. (FDR) 10,000,000 728,964 10,728,964 36,735,353
Mutual Trust Bank (FDR) lien with PGCL. 1,195,457 - 1,195,457 1,195,457
Janata Bank Ltd. (FDR) 20,000,000 1,545,521 21,545,521 20,000,000
BRAC Bank Ltd. (FDR) 21,747,000 816,081 22,563,081 20,000,000
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. (FDR) - - - 21,030,000
Total 141,941,591 171,916,290
Cash and Cash Equivalents: Tk.29,256,147
Particulars 20 Ju |
The above balance is made up as follows:
Cash in Hand 3,530 9,218
Janata Bank, Local office, Dhaka. STD A/C0887 383,859 512,876
Janata Bank, Ishurdi, Pabna, CD A/C No-373 1,511 1,511
Janata Bank A/C CD 33066246 782 782
Sonali Bank, Dhaka, CD A/C No-242(33000969) 3,519 3,519
Agrani Bank, Ishurdi, Pabna. CD A/C No-1085 503 503
Agrani Bank CD A/C No-1773 5,685 5,685
Agrani Bank CD A/C No-1532 7,605 7,605
Agrani Bank STD A/C No-152 12,241 12,241
Prime Bank,IBB Dilkusha CD A/C 60031045 14,351,436 5,544,641
Prime Bank,Ishurdi,Pabna CD A/C 60008502 2,966 -
Eastern Bank Ltd.SDT A/C 20314258 3,134 329,820
Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd. STD A/C-5122 4,478,486 -
City Bank Ltd. CD A/C-7001 10,000,890 -
Total 29,256,147 6,428,401

The bank balances have been confirmed and reconciled with respective bank statements.

Cash in hand has been verified by the Management at the close of the year and a cash custody certificate was furnished

to the Auditors.
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
har ital: Amount in Taka | Amount in Taka
30 June 2015 30 June 2014

Authoriz ital : Tk.

50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each. 500,000,000 500,000,000
Issued Subscribed and Paid up Capital: Tk, 152,302,100

i) 590,165 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/- each. 5,901,650 5,901,650
i) 14,640,045 Bonus Shares of Tk. 10/- each. 146,400,450 121,016,770
Total 152,302,100 126,918,420

Composition of Shareholding :

Grouping of the shareholders
1) Government

2) Sponsors/Directors

3) Financial Institutions

4) General Public

Total

Year-2014-15

Year-2013-14

Shareholdings

%

Shareholdings

%

4,234 0.03% 3,629 0.03%
4,848,313 31.83% 4,373,599 34.46%
1,152,413 7.57% 910,250 717%
9,225,250 60.57% 7,404,464 58.34%

15,230,210 100% 12,691,842 100%

Details of the Shareholding is given below:
The distribution schedule showing the number of Shareholders and their shareholding in percentage has been disclosed below as
the requirement of the “Listing Regulation” of Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited.

Range of Holdings No.of % of No. of Shares % of Share
in number of Shares Shareholders Shareholders 2014-2015 Capital
1to 499 3346 65.96% 392,249 2.58%
500 to 5000 1490 29.37% 2,294,542 15.06%
5001 to 10000 122 2.40% 887,319 5.83%
10001 to 20000 45 0.89% 617,205 4.05%
20001 to 30000 16 0.31% 366,443 2.41%
30001 to 40000 8 0.16% 276,775 1.82%
40001 to 50000 5 0.10% 229,074 1.50%
50001 to 100000 14 0.28% 974,754 6.40%
100001 to 1000000 27 0.53% 9,191,849 60.35%
Total 5073 100% 15,230,210 100%

All shares have been fully called and paid up in cash. There was no preference shares issued by the company.

Market Price:

The shares of the Company are listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange and quoted market price was at Tk. 94.90 per share in the
Dhaka Stock Exchange on 30 June, 2015. During the year 2014-2015 the low price and high price per share were Tk 62.50 and Tk

184.10 respectively.

Reserve an rplus: Tk. 1

24

The above balance is made up as follows:

Particulars 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Capital Reserve 21,350 21,350
Reserve on Re-valuation of Fixed Assets 17,592,813 19,514,731
General Reserve 1,395,080 1,395,080
Total 19,009,243 20,931,161

The company revalued its fixed assets long before for Tk 33,393,926.70 including land. The detailed position as on June 30th.,
2015, is shown under Revaluation of Fixed Asset: Schedule-2, which is equal to above stated Reserve on Revaluation of Fixed

Assets.

Land 1,554,675 1,554,675
Fixed Assets other than land 16,038,138 17,960,056
Total 17,592,813 19,514,731
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Tax Holiday Reserve: Tk. 10,747,334
Particulars 30June2015  30June 2014
The above balance is made up as follows:
Opening Balance 10,747,334 10,747,334
Current year - -
Closing Balance 10,747,334 10,747,334

Unit No-02 of the Company enjoyed Tax Holiday up to June 30, 2004. As such Tax Holiday Reserve has not been

taken during the year under audit (2014-2015).
Retained Earning: Tk 30,032,934

Barticulars 30June2015  30June 2014

The above balance is made up as follows:
Opening Balance 30,233,454 30,007,953
Previous year's adjustment:
Company Income Tax 413,368 -
Other Advances and Prepayments (413,142) -
Provision for Other Expenses 711,131 -
Telephone Bill - 604
Interest on land revenue - (101,745)
Gain from exchange of foreign currency against export sale. - 312,836
Depreciation on_Revaluation of Fixed Asset - 2,473,735
Trade Creditors 1,777,935 2,481
Advance Against Sale 2,263 4,330
Current year's Depreciation on_Revaluation of Fixed Asset 1,921,918 2,178,994
Net Profit during the year 20,769,687 21,359,682
Provision for Income Tax for the year 2012-13 - (621,736)
Issue of Bonus Share (last year) (25,383,680) (25,383,680)
Total 30,032,934 30,233,454
Long Term Loan Fund 139,123,633
The above balance is made up as follows:

Patticulars 30 June 2015 30June205 | 30June 2015
Agrani Bank Ltd. Industrial Loan-Principal: 1st BMRE 2nd BMRE Total
Opening Balance 36,340,940 50,471,371 86,812,311
Add: Received from Agrani Bank - - -
Less: Payment - - -
Total: 36,340,940 50,471,371 86,812,311
Agrani Bank Ltd. Industrial Loan-Interest:
Opening Balance 39,538,958 12,772,364 52,311,322
Less: Payment - - -
Sub-total 39,538,958 12,772,364 52,311,322
Add: Provision for Interest ( Pls. refer to note no. 15.01) - - -
Total 39,538,958 12,772,364 52,311,322
Total 75,879,898 63,243,735 139,123,633
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Agrani Bank Ltd. Ishurdi Branch, Pabna in its bank account statement has shown the following balances as on  30. 06. 2011
Thereafter the company has received neither any bank statement nor any bank advice in this respect.

Bank bhalance position of these long term loans as per Bank Statement as on 30th. June 2011 is as follows:

15.01

Agrani Bank Ltd. Industrial Loan Principal: 1st BMRE -30 June, | 2nd BMRE- 30 June, (Total - 30 June 2011
2011 2011
Principal 46,002,622 36,796,719 82,799,341
Principal - 14,024,652 14,024,652
Total Principal 46,002,622 50,821,371 96,823,993
Interest 7,812,145 8,023,302 15,835,447
Interest 34,792,408 15,145,272 49,937,680
Interest 36,148,851 - 36,148,851
Total Interest 78,753,404 23,168,574 101,921,978
Total (Principal & Interest) 124,756,026 73,989,945 198,745,971
Excess shown by the bank 48,876,128 10,746,210 59,622,338

No provision had been made by the company for the excess amount claimed above by the bank as per Bank Statement. The
company has already filed Writ Petition No.5129 of 2009, claiming interest on Special Fund created by the Mill against the bank
with Honorable High Court. The Honorable High Court passed judgement on 15.02.2011 directing the Agrani Bank Ltd. to pay
company's deposit in Special Fund together with interest at prachalita hare (25%Te 1) on such deposit. In this context Agrani Bank
Ltd. has filed an appeal against the order to the Honorable Supreme Court, Appellate Division.

The Honorable Appellate Division passed judgement on 20.01.2014 that 'In the instant case the interest to be calculated on long
term FDR. The Leave-petitioner was also directed to pay interest on the FDR as per the rate of interest applicable to long term
FDR within 1(one) month of the availability of the certified copy of the order. Thereafter, passing the stipulated period, we filed an
application for issuence of Supplimentary Rule. After hearing the same the Honorable High Court Division fixed the date for
hearing contempt petition No. 151/2013 and now the matter awaiting for final hearing. We obtained a statement from our learned
advocate regarding development of the case, wherein he stated that "This petition was fixed for hearing on 17-06-2014. The matter
came up for hearing on several occasions but it was not taken up. Lastly after mentioning, the matter was taken up and after
hearing for a while the Hon'ble Court was pleased to post the matter as heard in part on 16-06-2015. On 11-08-2015, an application
for addition of party as petitioner no. 2 was filed by a share holder of the petitioner company. On 18-08-2015 the bank filed an
affidavit of compliance and we filed a supplementary affidavit, claiming our demand with a statement of account. The Hon'ble
Court after hearing the matter directed the bank to file a joint statement done by a chartered accountant firm and as bank failed to
do the needful we ourselves appointed a firm, took authenticated and accurate statements and submitted the same, the Hon'ble
Court heard the matter on 15-09-2015 and fixed next date on 10-11-2015 for further hearing."

15.02 Referring Writ Petition No. 5129 of 2009, and Contempt Petition No. 151 of 2013 a revised claim on the basis of judgment of Tk.

544,513,560.32 (Tk. 481,311,503.17 + Tk. 63,202,057.15) for payment of Special Fund amount remained deposited with Agrani
Bank Ltd. Ishardi Branch, Pabna, and interest thereon at the rate of interest of Long Term FDR from the date of deposit to
31.08.2015, inclusive of interest of Tk. 63, 202,057.15 for the period from 01. 03. 2014 to 31.08.2015. This amount after deducting
Tk 81,125,002.00, already received by the company, stands at Tk 463, 388,558.32.

15.03 We need to disclose here that Agrani bank Ltd, Ishardi Branch, Pabna filed the Case no. 89/13 dated 28-11-2013 against Alhaj
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Textile Mills Ltd. togather with its Chairman and Directors as defaulter for payment of dues on long term loan against !st. BMRE &
2nd. BMRE for Tk 289,847,500.64 and Short term Loans claiming for Tk 7,76,74,358.80 being total as Tk 36,75,21,859.44 as
20.11.2013 plus interest upto the date of payment to be received instead of our book balance of Tk. 13,91,23633 and Tk.
1,87,72,080 respectively.




HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
16 Deferred Tax (Liabilities): Tk 14,473,406
Amount in Taka| | Amount in Taka
Farticulars 30 June 2015 || 30.June 2014

The above balance is made up as follows:
Opening Balance 14,849,910 14,849,910
Add: (Reduction)/addition during the year (376,504) -
Closing Balance 14,473,406 14,849,910

Deferred tax liability stands as Tk 14,473,406 after deducting deferred tax income for the year 2012-13 on the

basis of actual tax assessment..

17 Advance Against Sales: Tk 346,088

The above balance is made up as follows:

Sl. Amount in Taka| [ Amount in Taka
Name of the Party

No. Address. 30.June 2015 || 30 June 2014
1 |M/s. Banga Yarn Trading Danga Bazar, Palash, Norsingdi - 37
2 [M/s. Jony Enterprise Dariapur Bazar, Shahjadpur, Sirajgon]. 32,513 32,513
3 |M/s. Dhaka Dying & Manufac. |Sarif Mention Motijheel, C/A, Dhaka. 10,500 10,500
4 M/s. Babul Traders Dariapur Bazar, Shahjadpur, Sirajgon]. 6,208 6,208
5 |M/s. Abul Keshem Hajee Market Pabna. 16,664 16,664
6 |M/s. Abdullah Textile Mills Ltd.|House No-376, Road-28, Dosh, Dhaka. 11,250 11,250
7 _|M/s. Shahidullah Hossain Bank Road, Pabna. 6,307 6,307
8 |M/s. Uzzel Traders Shibrampur, Pabna. 249,924 249,924
9 |M/s. Markjerry Ltd. 677 & 678 Ashulia Savar, Dhaka. 7,717 7,717
10 |[Md. Habib Traders Dariapur Bazar, Shahjadpur, Sirajgon; 5,005 5,005
11 |M/s. Diganta Enterprise Derge Bazar Palash, Narsingdi - 45
12 |M/s. Liton Enterprise 45 no. Soudia shipping centre - 2,263
Total 346,088 348,433

18 Security and Other Deposits: Tk. 2,519,822

Amount in Taka| | Amount in Taka

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Homes Enterprise 10,000 10,000
Bhai Bhai Traders 5,000 5,000
Banga Yarn Trading 2,500,000 2,500,000
Rubican Insect Control Co. 4,822 4,822
Total 2,519,822 2,519,822

19 Other Current Liabilities : Tk. 95.551.678

Particulars 30.June 2015 || 30 June 2014
Trade Creditors (Note -19.01) 9,568,109 18,459,463
Creditors (Staff & Officer) (Note -19.02) 9,578 9,710
Liabilities for VAT 355,194 243,606
Un-paid salary & wages 48,383 48,383
Income Tax Deduction from Parties 192,859 23,430
Sramik Kallan Tahabil 59,998 55,051
Other Sundry Creditors 4,192,555 2,555,745
Advance received against legal claim 81,125,002 81,125,002
Total 95,551,678 102,520,390
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
19.01 Trade Creditors: Tk 9,568,109
Particulars Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
M/s. A. Salam Engineering 221,693 155,910
M/s. Akber Motors - 17,800
M/s. Alhaj Jute Mills Limited 337,274 458,429
M/s. Al-Shariat Packaging 328,456 618,077
M/s. Asia Jute Manufacturing 195,082 195,082
M/s. Bangladesh General Insurance Co. (BGIC) - 1,726,796
M/s. Cargo Control Bangladesh Ltd. 782,714 851,597
M/s. Commodity control Services Ltd 19,728 19,728
Mr. Dipa Sarker - 16,225
M/s. Dana Engineers International Ltd. 373,750 -
M/s. Eden Trade Concern 25,840 25,840
M/s. Janata Insurance Co. Ltd 342,881 342,881
M/s. Keshobpur Sana Zining 5,759 5,759
M/s. Lima Claims surveyores - 10,350
M/s. Lipika 2,296,418 1,305,378
M/s. Macca Auto Paper Cone Product 843,503 24,484
M/s. Mozaddedia Tarikat Mission Press 121,260 162,524
M/s. Nahid Enterprise 34,997 64,449
M/s. Paper Cone Industries 1,311,086 1,655,656
Md. Hasnat Quiyam (Advocate) 221,500 122,500
M/s. Kalam Traders 1,817 -
M/s. Popular Advertising Ltd. 35,460 77,662
M/s. Press Al nasar 1,040 1,040
M/s. R. Rahman Enterprise 268 99.116
M/s. S.N. Trading 199,500 398,000
M/s. Shah Paran Auto Mobile 10,010 55,860
M/s. Shahanur Hardware & Store 15,537 15,5637
M/d. Shahbaj Uddin - 6,632
M/s. Standard Spring Industries 756,206 572,217
M/s. Star Enterprise 23,386 23,386
M/s. Textile Associates 5,000 -
Md. Abul Hossain (Manager Comm.) 9,216 9,216
M/s. Ashraf Electric Store 18,240 -
M/s. M.R.Enterprise 99,314 99,314
M/s. Bieco International 358,865 358,865
M/s. Microdil Computers 1,000 -
M/s. Modern machinery store - 12,700
M/s. K.S.Collection 378,525 -
M/s. T.Corporation 47,088 -
M/s. Arbour Enterprise 11,975 11,975
M/s. Bearing Palace 125,721 -
M/s. Sohrab Hossain 8,000 -
M/s. Sarkar Machinery Store - 8,496
M/s. Delcot Itd. - 95,851
M/s. S.K.Enterprise - 275,268
M/s. Sirajgonj Yarn Trading - 5,460,529
M/s. Risha Trade International - 3,098,334
Total 9,568,109 18,459,463
19.02 Liabilities for TA/DA: Tk. 9,578
Particulars 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Md. Mozammel Haque 6,918 6,918
Md. Anisur Rahman 2,660 2,660
Md. Emarat Ali (Driver) - 132
Total 9,578 9,710
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
20.00 Curent Tax Liabilities: 1,683,911
Particulars

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
The above balance is made up as follows:
Tax Liability-Ass. Year 2008-2009/Acct. Year 2007-2008 199,502 199,502
Tax Liability-Interest: Ass. Year 2008-2009/Acct. Year 2007-2008 76.840 76.840
Tax Liability-Ass. Year 2009-2010/Acct. Year 2008-2009 1,219.625 1.219.625
Tax Liability-Interest: Ass. Year 2009-2010/Acct. Year 2008-2009 182.944 182,944
Tax Liability-Ass. Year 2010-2011/Acct. Year 2009-2010 5.000 5,000
Total 1,683,911 1,683,911

21.00 Provision for Taxes: Tk 14,304,743
Particul Amount in Taka Amount in Taka

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
The above balance is made up as follows: |
Provision for Accounting Year (2011-2012) - 2,190,896
Provision for Accounting Year (2012-2013) 2,712,130 2,712,130
Provision for Accounting Year (2013-2014) 4,800,176 4,800,176
Provision for Accounting Year (2014-2015) 6,792,437 -
Total 14,304,743 9,703,202

22.00 Proposed Dividend

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 28th Oct, 2015 proposed Cash Dividend @ 5% and Stock
Dividend @10% for the year under audit .

The proposed dividend / Bonus is not recognized as a liability at the Statement of Financial Position date in
accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 10" Events after the Reporting Date.

Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements also require that the
Dividend / Bonus proposed after the Statement of Financial Position date but before the financial Statements
are authorized for issue be disclosed either on the face of the Statement of Financial Position as a separate
component of equity or in the notes to the Financial Statements.

The Provision of Companies Act, 1994, provides that dividend shall be paid out of the profit of the year or
any other undistributed profit and that are proposed or declared after the Statement of Financial Position
date but before approval of the Financial Statements should be either adjusted or discloded.

Considering the requirements of BAS-1, BAS-10 and Companies Act 1994, proposed dividend has been
disclosed in the Financial Statements and not shown as liability.

23.00 Provisions for Other Liabilities and Charges: Tk 4,318,732
Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
Particulars
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Salary & wages clearing account (Note-23.01) 2,659,087 2,297,302
Provision for other expenses (Note-23.02) 1,659,645 2,280,716
Total 4,318,732 4,578,018
23.01 I nd W learing A nt: Tk 2 7
Particul Amount in Taka Amount in Taka
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Salary of Staff & Officers :
For Head office (month of June,2015) 449,136 380,873
For Factory (month of June,2015) 500,303 469,028
Wages :
For the month of June, 2015 1,709,648 1,447,401
Total 2,659,087 2,297,302
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visions for Other Ex - Tk. 1 HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
The above balance is made up as follows:
Amount in Taka | Amountin Taka
Farticulars 30June2015 | 30 June 2014
Telephone Bill for no.63905 - 101,931
Annual Audit and Inventory fee for the year 2014-2015 95,000 95,000
VAT on Audit Fee (Accounts and Inventory ) 2014-2015 14,250 7,500
MD'S Remuneration (June,15) 92,000 92,000
Repair & Maintenance of Vehicles - 171,200
Selling & distribution expenses June'09 - 18,000
Gas Bill June,15 440,876 430,639
Mill Electricity Bill June,15 627,495 540,317
Honorarium of Chairman for the month of June,15 36,000 36,000
Wages (June,15) 4,500 35,000
Daily Labour Bill (June,15) 35,815 33,550
Head office Telephone Bill ( June'15) 7,640 17,254
Head office electric Bill (June'15) 9,725 10,060
Sales promotion (June,15) 2,615 1,960
Mill's Newspaper bill (June,15) 290 290
Canteen Subsidy (June,15) 4,000 4,000
Head Office Internet Bill (June,15) 5,400 5,400
Annual General Meeting expenses - 420,000
Repairs of Vehicles (Shahparan Automobile) - 4,500
Annual Fee for CDBL (May,15 to June,15) 9,333 9,333
Bonus Share Transfer Fee of CDBL 29,028 -
Repair & Maintenance of Office Epuipment - 1,700
Service charge of Favourite Security Service Ltd. (June,15) 160,591 131,041
VAT on Favourite Security Service Ltd. (June,14) - 19,656
Raw Cotton Unloading Bill - 8,449
Unloading Bill (Supplier) - 1,334
Sundarban Courior Service Bill (May,15 & June,15) 9,730 8,180
Roaster Duty Bill (June,15) 15,900 14,800
Entertainment Expenses bill of AGM Production June,15 2,000 -
Mill's Telephone Bill (May,15 to June,15) 5,045 9,542
Carriage Inward 17,612 -
Mill Dish Line Bill June,15 800 -
Petrol for Vehicle (Car No-0302) 4,000 -
Annual Subscription of BAPLC for Membership (2014-2015) 30,000 30,000
Annual Subscription of BTMA for Membership - 22,080
Total 1,659,645 2,280,716
Bank Overdraft: Tk 18.772.080
Amount in Taka | Amountin Taka
Particulas Notes 30June2015 | 30 June 2014
Agrani Bank - Cash Credit 24.01 37,032,249 37,032,249
(Hypothecation) - A/C-60/099
Agrani Bank - Cash Credit (Pledge) - 24.02 (18,260,169) (18,260,169)
A/C-07/08
Total Cash Credit / Bank Overdraft 18,772,080 18,772,080
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26.00

HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Agrani Bank Ltd. Ishurdi Branch, Pabna in its bank account statement has shown the following balances
ason 30. 06. 2011 Thereafter company has not received neither any bank statement nor any bank

advice in this respect.

Bank balance position of these short term loans as per Bank Statement as on 30th. June 2012

was as follows:

Particulars Amount in Taka | Amount in Taka
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
CC-Hypo CC-Hypo
Balance of CC-(Hypo) 53,455,913 53,455,913
Balance of CC-(Pledge) - -
Total 53,455,913 53,455,913
Excess shown by the bank 53,455,913 53,455,913

No provision had been made by the company for the excess amount claimed above by the bank as per

Bank Statement.

This is to disclose here that Agrani bank Ltd, Ishardi Branch, Pabna filed the Case no. 89/13 dated 28-
11- 2013 against Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd. together with its Chairman and Directors as defaulter for
payment of interest on above CC (Hypo) total due of Tk 77,674,358.80 as on 20.11.2013 plus interest

upto the date of payment to be received.

Company feels that its claim referred under note No. 15.01 is more than sufficient to cover its bank
overdraft and long term loan liabilities if any arise under the judgment.

Worker's Profit Participation Fund: Tk 1,359,281

The balance is made up as follows:

Amount jn Taka | Amountin Taka
Particul

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Opening Balance 3,282,227 4,535,946
Current year's fund 1,359,281 1,307,993
Fund utilized (3,282,227) (2,561,712)
Closing Balance 1,359,281 3,282,227
Net Asset Value Per Share (NAVPS): Tk. 13.93
The NAVPS is made up as follows:

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Total Assets & Properties Value 504,544,985 486,211,995
Less Total Liabilities 292,453,374 297,381,626
Total Net Assets 212,091,611 188,830,369
Total number of Share 15,230,210 12,691,842
Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) 13.93 14.88
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
27.00 Turnover (Amount) :
Particulars 2014-2015 2013-2014
Carded Spun Yarn 260,196,579 283,480,535
Open-End Yarn 6,448,080 5,047,204
Total 266,644,659 | 288,527,739 |
Turnover (Kg) :
Carded Spun Yarn 928,143 877,924
Open-End Yarn 66,226 36,515
Total 994,369 | 914,439 |
T - ity (Kg) -
2014-2015
Production type Ospteor::g Production Closing Stock Sales 3:;:_"9 the
(a) (b) (c) (a+b-c)
Carded Spun Yarn 181,337 1,061,876 315,070 928,143
Open-End Yarn 31,933 68,858 34,565 66,226
Total 213,270 1,130,734 349,635 994,369
Turnover in quantity (Kg) :
2013-2014
Production type Osptir::g Production Closing Stock Sales \cli:al':ng the
(a) (b) (c) (a+b-c)
Carded Spun Yarn 115,940 943,321 181,337 877,924
Open-End Yarn 8,256 60,192 31,933 36,515
Total 124,196 1,003,513 213,270 914,439
Revenue (Turnover): Tk 266.644.659
q . fp ion & S f Fini e fol .
Particul 30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Quantity KG Amount (Tk) Quantity KG Amount (Tk)
Opening Stock 213,270 61,118,494 124,196 35,387,541
Add: Production during the year 1,130,734 296,607,296 1,003,513 314,258,692
Goods available for sale 1,344,004 357,725,790 1,127,709 349,646,233
Less: Closing Stock (349,635) (91,081,131) (213,270) (61,118,494)
Total Sale during the year 994,369 266,644,659 914,439 288,527,739
Cost of Sales : Tk. 232,965,776
Cost of Sales details are as under:
_ : in Taka |2 in Tal |
Particulars Note 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014
Work-in-Process (Opening) 5,185,654 6,252,298
Raw Materials Consumption 193,659,657 199,690,105
Waste Cotton Consumption 6,077,005 5,759,695
(-)_Work-in-Process (Closing) (3,686,764) (5,185,654)
(-) Wastage Recoverable (6,260,399) (5,782,904)
Total Consumption (a) 194,975,153 200,733,540
Factory Wages and Allowances 28.01 20,223,215 20,898,534
Factory Salary and Allowances 28.02 5,198,182 4,795,316
Store and Spares 28.03 11,529,515 15,328,068
Other Factory Overhead Expenses 28.04 31,002,348 34,510,993
Total cost (b) 67,953,260 75,532,911
COST OF PRODUCTION (a+b) 262,928,413 276,266,451
Finished Goods (Opening) 61,118,494 35,387,541
Finished Goods (Closing) (91,081,131) (61,118,494)
Total Cost of Sales 232,965,776 250,535,498
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

FQQIQ[!( Waggs and Allgwangg§; Tk. 20.223.215 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Amount in Taka |Amount in Taka|
Particulars 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014
Wages and allowances 19,189,027 19,924,174
Bonus 1,034,188 974,360
Total 20,223,215 20,898,534
Factory Salary and Allowances: 5,198,182
Farticulars 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014
Salary and allowances 4,878,981 4,670,656
Bonus 319,201 124,660
Total 5,198,182 4,795,316
r n res: Tk. 11.529.51
Barticulars 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014
Spare Parts 3,896,781 6,391,394
Packing Materials 5,810,912 5,932,635
Lubricants 314,528 250,775
Electrical Materials 1,070,170 1,913,302
Building Maintenance Materials 92,777 33,214
Other Maintenances materials 249,102 277,085
Roof Maintenance Materials 87,885 104,663
Bobbin & Shuttle Expenses - 425,000
Chemical Expenses 7,360 -
Total 11,529,515 15,328,068
Other Factory Overhead: Tk. 31,002,348
. : tin Tal . tin Takal
Particulars 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014
Carriage inward 2,360 22,527
Electricity and Power 4,731,507 5,583,896
Gas Bill for Generator 5,170,380 5,158,371
Depreciation 14,163,543 16,691,054
Depreciation on re-valuation.of Fixed Assets 1,921,918 2,178,994
Repairs and Maintenance of Machinery(out side) 420,063 770,245
Repairs and Maintenance of Electric Equipment 400 6,500
Repairs and Maintenance of Boundary Wall 12,160 76,029
Repairs and Maintenance of Fire Fighting Equipt. - 3,000
Rent,Rate and Taxes 24,000 76,500
Insurance Premium 1,758,581 1,782,099
Printing and Stationery 60,723 78,872
Postage & Telephone 18,792 14,582
Gas Generator Operating Expenses 2,169,522 2,024,324
Canteen Subsidy 48,000 44,000
Amortization of Deferred Revenue Expenditure 416,285 -
Raw Cotton Testing Fee 15,995 -
L/C Cancellation Charges 68,119 -
Total 31,002,348 34,510,993
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

Schedul f Administrative Expen - 17.051,363 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Particulars 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014
Salary and allowances 6,175,029 5,911,109
Bonus 412,392 619,468
Leave Pay 39,877 121,826
Directors Remuneration 1,200,000 1,200,000
Board Meeting Fee 530,000 940,000
Audit Committee Meeting fee 280,000 450,000
Purchase Committee Meeting Fee 560,000 580,000
Chairman's Honorarium 540,000 540,000
Repairs of Vehicals 235,303 300,885
Printing and Stationery 330,874 224,258
Uniform 6,000 8,000
Medical Expenses 51,730 10,301
Rent,Rates and Taxes 714,523 513,000
Travelling and Conveyances 98,859 107,853
Petrol for Car 731,505 735,135
Electricity and Power 71,430 75,787
Depreciation 446,165 476,917
Postage,Telegram and Courier 303,350 218,458
Fooding and Entertainment 258,075 166,675
Fees and Professional Charges 1,314,750 1,646,385
Legal and Consultancy Expenses 403,690 133,647
Inventory audit fee 45,000 45,000
Accounts audit fee 50,000 50,000
Annual Subscription 195,094 202,619
News Paper and Magazine 3,440 3,540
Bank Charges 125,424 172,122
Miscellaneous Expenses 6,674 7,850
Advertisement Expenses 287,783 533,750
Annual Fee for CDBL 85,028 43,226
Water and Gas Supplies Expenses 97,200 95,400
Sanitation Expenses 1,075 3,245
Annual General Meeting expenses 76,399 31,150
Repairs and Main. of Machinery ( outside Party) 15,020 133,695
Car Parking Expenses 30,000 30,000
Annual Religious Festivals Expenses 91,810 78,544
VAT Expenses 889,699 925,316
Service Charge of Head Office 226,800 222,600
Other Servicing (Office equipment) 42,365 118,404
Celebrating Expenses of Independence Day 25,000 20,000
Website Installation Expenses 16,000 21,059
Dish Line Communication Exp. 14,000 12,400
Garage Rent 24,000 24,000
Total 17,051,363 17,753,624

Amount in Taka |Amount in Taka

Particulars

30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Salary and allowances 436,549 279,048
Bonus 32,896 28,672
Delivery & Distribution Expenses 604,788 391,360
Sales Promotion Expenses 45 470 21,175
Total 1,119,703 720,255

D
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Inven Adjustment TK. Nil HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
The above balance is made up as follows: CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Farticulars 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014

Shortage during year end Physical inventory

H. Head Bolt - 26
Clam Pati - 22
lat Belt - 2,281
Sub-total: (A) - 2,329
Less: Excess during year end Physical inventory

G. |. Socket | - 15
Connecting BKT - 35
Sub-total: (B) - 50
Total: (A-B) - 2,279
Provision for Income Tax: Tk 6,792,437

~Farticulars 30 June 2015 | 30 June 2014

Operating Income:

Total Income 15,507,817 19,514,611
WPPF (1,359,281) (1,307,993)
Income after WPPF 14,148,536 18,206,618
Less adjustment of carry forward loss of - (6,088,544)
assessment year 1991-92

Income after carry forward adjustments 14,148,536 12,118,074
Tax on operating income @ 15% (A) 2,122,280 1,817,711
Non-Operating Income:

Interest received from Investment in FDR 11,567,882 6,168,681
Income from Investment in Shares (Dividend) - 1,250,000
Interest received from Bank 102,802 533,059
Other Income 116,400 1,500
Total Non-Operating Income: 11,787,084 7,953,240
Tax on non operating income (B) 4,420,157 2,982,465
@ 37.50%

Income from Investment in Shares (Dividend) 1,250,000 -
Tax on Dividend Income @ 20% 250,000 -
Total Income Tax Provision (A+B) 6,792,437 4,800,176

The computation of EPS is given below:

Amount in Taka |Amount in Taka|
Particulars
30 June 2015 30 June 2014
Earning attributable to the Ordinary Shareholders
[Net Profit/(Loss) after tax] 20,769,687 21,359,682
Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year 15,230,210 15,230,210
Basic EPS 1.36 1.40
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures Under IAS 32 "Financial Instruments Disclosures and Presentation”

Set out below is a year-end balance of carrying amounts (book value) of all financial assets & liabilities (financial instruments):

Interest Bearing
Particulars Maturity withit: ;zte :naa\turity after One W Total Taka
year year Bearing laka
Financial Assets
Trade Debtors - - 1,888,493 1,888,493
Investment in FDR 141,941,591 - - 141,941,591
Cash & Cash Equivalents - - 29,256,147 29,256,147
Total Financial Assets 141,941,591 - 31,144,640 173,086,231
Financial Liabilities
Advance against Sales - - 346,088 346,088
Security and Other Deposits - - 2,519,822 2,519,822
Other Current Liabilities - - 95,551,678 95,551,678
Provision for Taxes - - 14,304,743 14,304,743
Worker's Profit Participation Fund - - 1,359,281 1,359,281
Bank Overdraft 18,772,080 - - 18,772,080
Long Term Bank Loan - - 139,123,633 139,123,633
Total Financial Liabilities 18,772,080 - 253,205,245 271,977,325
Net Financial Assets/(Liabilities): 123,169,511 - (222,060,605) (98,891,094)

Carrying Amounts (Book Value)

The basis of carrying amounts have been stated in accounting policies (Note-2)

Fair Value

Management believe that the fair value of all financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying

Market Value

The market value of all financial instruments are not available as these are not traded on organized markets in standardized form.

Interest Rate Risk Exposure

Company's borrowings are subject to market rate fluctuations which are reviewed with lenders on an ongoing basis.

Concentration on Credit Risk

The company's management believe that there was no significant concentration of credit risk in trade debtors.

Foreign Currency Risk

The company is subject to foreign currency fluctuations as the local currency (Taka) varies with US Dollars and other foreign

currencies.

Payment/Perquisites to Directors & Managers

Break up of the remuneration are noted as below:
Sl No. Particulars Managing Director Directors Man_agersl
Officers
1 Basic Remuneration 1,014,000 - 3,991,104
2 House Rent 180,000 - 2,131,584
3 Bonus - - 665,184
4 Other Benefit 6,000 - 1,127,632
5 Board Meeting Fee 150,000 1,170,000 -
Total Payment during the year 1,350,000 1,170,000 7,915,504
Total Payment in last year 1,430,000 1,630,000 7,260,800
Payment of honorarium to the Chairman
The above balance is made up as follows:
S| No. Particulars 30-06-2015 30-06-2014
1 Honorarium 540,000 540,000
2 Board Meeting fee 50,000 110,000
Total: 590,000 650,000




HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

37.00 Plant Capacity and Capacity Utilization CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Capacity of Achievement
Particulars Production in lac
Ibs.
Spinning (Ring 54.15 42.04
Frame)
Rotor 2.13 1.53

38.00 Capital Expenditure Commitment
There was no capital expenditure commitment as on June 30, 2015

39.00 Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets
Both contingent liability as well as contingent assets are existing in relation to interest on unsettled Long Term Loan, Bank
Overdraft and Special Fund Deposit with Agrani Bank Ltd., Ishurdi Branch, Pabna, as stated under Note No. 15 & 24 above.

Position of these liabilities/assets as per claims raised both by Agrani Bank Ltd. and by the company.

Contingent Assets | Contingent Liabilities
Particulars (Claimed by the |plus interest (Claimed
Company) by the Bank)

1 Claim lodged by Agrani Bank Ltd. for Long term loan 289,847,501
Less Long term loan liability acknowledged by company (139,123,633)
Sub-total 150,723,868

2 Claim lodged by Agrani Bank Ltd. for Short term loan 77,674,359
Less Short term loan liability acknowledged by company (18,772,080)
Sub-total 58,902,279
Total Contingent Liability 209,626,147

3 Claim lodged by the Company for Special Fund Deposit with 481,311,503
Agrani Bank Ltd., Ishurdi branch, Pabna.

(22.01,1989 to 28.02..2014)

Add Interest @ 10.50% ( 01.03.2014 to 30.06.2015), out of 49,157,156

Tk. 6,32,02,057.15 (( 01.03.2014 to 31.08.2015)

Total receivable upto 30.06.2015 530,468,659

Less Amount received by company (81,125,002)

Total Contingent Assets 449,343,657

Total Contingent AssetsiLiabilities 449,343,657 209,626,147

40.00 There was no bank guarantee issued by the company on behalf of their directors or the company itself except bank loan.

41.00 a)
b)

No expenses were incurred or paid in foreign currencies.

No other income was earned or received in foreign currencies except as stated above.

42.00 Commission, Brokerage or Discount against Sales
No commission, brokerage and discount was incurred or paid to the sales agent.

43.00 Post Balance Sheet Event
Subsequent to the Statement of Financial Position date , the Board of Directors recommended in it's meeting held on 28/10/2015
for payment of 5% cash dividend and 10% bonus share for distribution at the end of the year 2015, which is subject to the approval

of the shareholders in the ensuing 33“Annual General Meeting of the company.

44.00 Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994 and
DSE's requirement under Annexure 10 of Schedule A-Para-18 of The Dhaka Stock Exchange (Listing) Regulations, 2015

Compliances are shown in Annexure-1 & 2 herewith this report.
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994:
A. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part I, Para-3, Note 4 (i) and (i
Perreq () and (i) ANNEXURE-1
Employees position of the company as at 30 June, 2015:
Salary (Monthly) Officer & Staff Total
Worker | Employees
Factory |Head Office
Aggregate remuneration for the year Tk. 36,000/- and above. 34 20 321 375
Aggregate remuneration for the year below Tk. 36,000/- 3 - 100 103
Total 37 20 41 478

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 3:

Para

Compliance status of disclosure of
Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 3

The turnover

Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 27

Commission paid to the selling agent

Not Applicable

Brokerage and discount on sales, other than the usual trade
discount.

Not Applicable

The value of the raw materials consumed, giving item wise breakup
as possible.

Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 6.01

The opening and closing stocks of goods produced.

Complied - Disclosed in Note No- 6.03

In the case of trading companies, the purchase made and the
opening and closing stocks.

Not applicable

In the case of companies rendering or supplying services, the gross
income derived from services rendered or supplied.

Not Applicable

Opening and closing stocks, purchases and sales and consumption
of raw materials with value and quantity break-up for the company,
which falls under one or more categories i.e. manufacturing and/or
trading.

Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 6.01

In the case of other companies, the gross income derived under
different heads.

Not Applicable

Work-in-progress, which have been completed at the
commencement and at the end of the accounting period.

Complied- Disclosed in Note No- 6.02

Provision for depreciation, renewals or diminution in value of fixed
assets.

Complied -Disclosed in Schedule No- 1-2

Interest on the debenture paid or payable to the Managing Director,
Managing Agent and Manager.

Not Applicable

Charge of income tax and other taxation on profits.

Complied -Disclosed in Note No- 32

Revised for repayment of share capital and repayment of loans

Not Applicable

Amount set aside or proposed to be set aside, to reserve, but not
including provisions made to meet any specific liability, contingency
or commitment, know to exist at the date as at which the balance
sheet is made up.

Not Applicable
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
3(i)(n)(ii) Amount withdrawn from above mentioned reserve Not Applicable
3(i)(o)(i) Amount set aside to provisions made for meeting specific liabilities, .
. . : Not Applicable
contingencies of commitments.
3(i)(o)(ii) Amount withdrawn from above mentioned provisions, as no longer .
. Not Applicable
required.
3()(p) Expenditure incurred on each of the following items, separately for

each item: (i) Consumption of stores and spare parts (ii) Power and
Fuel (iii) Rent (iv) Repairs of Buildings (v) Repairs of Machinery (vi)
(1) Salaries, wages and bonous (2) Contribution to provident and
other funds (3) Worksmen and staff welfare expenses to the extent
not adjusted from any previous provision or reserve.

Complied -Disclosed in Note From 28.01
to 28.04, 29, 30 and in Income Statement

B. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part I, Para 4:
Payment/Perquisites to Directors & Managers
Complied and Disclosed in Schedule 35 and 36.
C. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 7:

Details of production capacity utilization:

License Installed Actual Capacit
Particulars Capacity (In | Capacity | Production Utilipzatioyn
MT) (In MT) (In MT)
Annual production capacity in MT  [Spinning (R/Frame) 2,282.28 2,456.20| 1,907.00 | 77.64%
(Average 32/1 count)
Rotor 258.19 96.61 69.37 | 71.83%
D. Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 8 (C) :
Raw materials, spare parts, packing materials and capital machinery:
% of
Items Total Purchase Consumption (BDT) | consumption
(BDT)
of total
Raw materials 201,715,434 193,659,657 96%
Spare parts 7,921,929 8,931,686 100%
Packing materials 5,399,669 5,810,912 100%
Total 215,037,032 208,402,255
Value of export:
Particulars In foreign currencies (US$) In BDT Not applicable as the
Company has not
Export NIL NIL exported any comodities.
Total - -

i) The company has not incurred any expenditure in foreign currencies for the period from 01 July, 2014 to 30 June, 2015
on account of royalty, know-how, professional fees, consultancy fees and interest;

ii) The company has not earned any foreign exchanges for royalty, know-how, professional fees, consultancy fees and
interest;

i) The Company has not remit any foreign currencies on account of dividend.
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HAQUE SHAHALAM MANSUR & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Disclosure as per DSE's requirement of Annexure-10 of Schedule-A, Para-18
Ratio Analysis

Annexure-2

2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 [ 2013-2014 2014-2015

A) Liquidity Ratios:
1) Current ratio = 2.40:1 2.92:1 3.76:1 2.41:1 2.71:1

2) Quick ratio= 0.28:1 0.69:1 1.30:1 1.45:1 1.44:1

B) Operating Ratios:

1) Accounts receivable Turnover Ratio = NA NA NA NA NA
2) Inventory Turnover Ratio = 1.04:1 3.81:1 2.91:1 2.33:1 1.90:1
3) Asset Turn over Ratio = 0.45:1 0.98:1 0.88:1 0.59:1 0.53:1

(6)] Profitability Ratios:

1) Gross Margin Ratio = 27.65% 8.69% 16.17% 13.17% 12.63%
2) Operating Income Ratio = 20.90% 3.94% 11.54% 6.76% 5.82%
3) Net Income Ratio = 18.39% 3.70% 6.72% 7.40% 7.79%
4) Return on Assets Ratio = 0.08:1 0.04:1 0.06:1 0.04:1 0.04:1
5) Return on Equity Ratio = 20.66% 8.60% 13.43% 11.31% 9.79%

6) Net Operating cash flow to Net Profit Ratio 332.13% 171.17% 164.41% 574.48% (138.31)%

D) [Stockholder Ratios:

1) Earning per Share = 3.62 1.35 2.22 1.68 1.36
2) Price/Earnings (P/E) Ratio = 16.27:1 21.41:1 27.43:1 88.75:1 69.78:1
3) Dividend yield Ratio 0.03:1 0.03:1 0.04:1 0.01:1 -
4) Dividend Payout Ratio = 0.55:1 0.74:1 1.13:1 1.19:1 -

E) Solvency Ratios:

1) Times Interest Earned Ratio = NA NA NA NA NA
2) Debt to Equity Ratio = 1.50:1 1.38:1 1.27:1 1.57:1 1.38:1
3) Bad debt Ratio = NA NA NA NA NA
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A Partial View of the mills
(Alhaj Textile Mills Ltd.)

ALHAJ TEXTILE

Head Office: 66 Dilkusha C/A, 4th Floor, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh.
E-mail : info@alhajtextilemills.com, Website: www.alhajtextilemills.com
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